

# THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

# **BID OPPORTUNITY**

**BID OPPORTUNITY NO. 224-2005** 

RESIDENTIAL MANUAL GARBAGE COLLECTION SERVICES IN THE NORTHEAST AREA OF WINNIPEG

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

### PART A - BID SUBMISSION

Form (	A: Bid B: Prices G1: Bid Bond and Agreement to Bond G2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit and Undertaking	1 4 5 7
PART B -	BIDDING PROCEDURES	
B2. S B3. E B4. A B5. S B6. E B7. E B8. F B9. C B10. E B11. C B12. I B13. V B14. E		1 1 1 1 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7
PART C -	GENERAL CONDITIONS	
C1. (	General Conditions	1
PART D -	SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS	
D2. S D3. D D4. C D5. C	ral General Conditions Scope of Work Duration of Contract Contract Administrator Contractor's Supervisor Notices	1 1 1 2 2
D7. / D8. V D9. I	<b>issions</b> Authority to Carry on Business Workers Compensation nsurance Performance Security	3 3 3 3
D11. (	<b>tule of Work</b> Commencement Prime Contractor – The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba)	4 4
D13. F	urement and Payment <sup>D</sup> ayment Schedule Annual Review – Inflationary Adjustment:	5 5
D16. 0 Form H Form H	I <b>nty</b> Warranty Conclusion of Warranty Period H1: Performance Bond- Initial Performance Security H1: Performance Bond- Renewal Performance Security H2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit	5 5 7 9 11

#### **PART E - SPECIFICATIONS**

E1. General	1
E2. Unit Prices	1
E3. Contract Quantities	1
E4. Payments	2
E5. Service For Handicapped Persons	2 3
E6. Litter Container Collection	3
E7. Bulky Wastes Collection Services	3
E8. Schedule of Collection Routes and Days of Collection	5
E9. Peak Periods and Holidays	5
E10. List of Equipment	6
E11. Inspection	6
E12. Communications Requirements	6 6
E13. Dismissal of Employees	7 7
E14. Work Performance and Equipment Breakdown	
E15. Service Standards	8
E16. Impassable Alleys and/or Streets	9
E17. Residential Garbage Collection – Related By-Laws/Interpretations	10
E18. Discretionary Authority Under the Solid Waste Bylaw	11
E19. Dealing With Improperly Stored / Placed / Unsafe Garbage Containers	11
E20. Tagging of Uncollected Materials	12
E21. Damage, Misuse or Removal of Garbage Containers	12
E22. Garbage Spillage	12
E23. Dead Animals	13
E24. Solid Waste Disposal Site	13
E25. Disposal Charges	13
E26. Equipment and Personnel Safety Requirements	14
E27. Metric Measurements	14
E28. Service Locations	14
E29. Tonnes Collected	28

### PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES

#### B1. PROJECT TITLE

B1.1 RESIDENTIAL MANUAL GARBAGE COLLECTION SERVICES IN THE NORTHEAST AREA OF WINNIPEG

#### B2. SUBMISSION DEADLINE

- B2.1 The Submission Deadline is 12:00 noon Winnipeg time, July 14, 2005.
- B2.2 Bid Submissions determined by the Manager of Materials to have been received later than the Submission Deadline will not be accepted and will be returned upon request.
- B2.3 The Contract Administrator or the Manager of Materials may extend the Submission Deadline by issuing an addendum at any time prior to the time and date specified in B2.1.

#### B3. ENQUIRIES

- B3.1 All enquiries shall be directed to the Contract Administrator identified in D4.1.
- B3.2 If the Bidder finds errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Bid Opportunity, or is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Bidder shall notify the Contract Administrator of the error, discrepancy or omission, or request a clarification as to the meaning or intent of the provision at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B3.3 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, require a correction to or a clarification of the Bid Opportunity will be provided by the Contract Administrator to all Bidders by issuing an addendum.
- B3.4 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, do not require a correction to or a clarification of the Bid Opportunity will be provided by the Contract Administrator only to the Bidder who made the enquiry.
- B3.5 The Bidder shall not be entitled to rely on any response or interpretation received pursuant to B3 unless that response or interpretation is provided by the Contract Administrator in writing.

#### B4. ADDENDA

- B4.1 The Contract Administrator may, at any time prior to the Submission Deadline, issue addenda correcting errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Bid Opportunity, or clarifying the meaning or intent of any provision therein.
- B4.2 The Contract Administrator will issue each addendum at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, or provide at least two (2) Business Days by extending the Submission Deadline.
- B4.2.1 Addenda will be available on the Bid Opportunities page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.
- B4.2.2 The Bidder is responsible for ensuring that he has received all addenda and is advised to check the Materials Management Branch internet site for addenda shortly before submitting his Bid.
- B4.3 The Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in Paragraph 10 of Form A: Bid. Failure to acknowledge receipt of an addendum may render a Bid non-responsive.

#### B5. SUBSTITUTES

- B5.1 The Work is based on the Material, Equipment and methods specified in the Bid Opportunity.
- B5.2 Substitutions shall not be allowed unless application has been made to and prior approval has been granted by the Contract Administrator in writing.
- B5.3 Requests for approval of a substitute will not be considered unless received in writing by the Contract Administrator at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B5.4 The Bidder shall ensure that any and all requests for approval of a substitute:
  - (a) provide sufficient information and details to enable the Contract Administrator to determine the acceptability of the Material, Equipment or method as either an approved equal or alternative;
  - (b) identify any and all changes required in the applicable Work, and all changes to any other Work, which would become necessary to accommodate the substitute;
  - (c) identify any anticipated cost or time savings that may be associated with the substitute;
  - (d) certify that, in the case of a request for approval as an approved equal, the substitute will fully perform the functions called for by the general design, be of equal or superior substance to that specified, is suited to the same use and capable of performing the same function as that specified and can be incorporated into the Work, strictly in accordance with the proposed work schedule and the dates specified in the Supplemental Conditions for Substantial Performance and Total Performance;
  - (e) certify that, in the case of a request for approval as an approved alternative, the substitute will adequately perform the functions called for by the general design, be similar in substance to that specified, is suited to the same use and capable of performing the same function as that specified and can be incorporated into the Work, strictly in accordance with the proposed work schedule and the dates specified in the Supplemental Conditions for Substantial Performance and Total Performance.
- B5.5 The Contract Administrator, after assessing the request for approval of a substitute, may in his sole discretion grant approval for the use of a substitute as an "approved equal" or as an "approved alternative", or may refuse to grant approval of the substitute.
- B5.6 The Contract Administrator will provide a response in writing, at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, only to the Bidder who requested approval of the substitute.
- B5.6.1 The Bidder requesting and obtaining the approval of a substitute shall be entirely responsible for disseminating information regarding the approval to any person or persons he wishes to inform.
- B5.7 If the Contract Administrator approves a substitute as an "approved equal", any Bidder may use the approved equal in place of the specified item.
- B5.8 If the Contract Administrator approves a substitute as an "approved alternative", any Bidder bidding that approved alternative shall base his Total Annual Bid Price upon the specified item but may also indicate an alternative price based upon the approved alternative. Such alternatives will be evaluated in accordance with B14.
- B5.9 No later claim by the Contractor for an addition to the Total Annual Bid Price because of any other changes in the Work necessitated by the use of an approved equal or an approved alternative will be considered.

#### B6. BID SUBMISSION

- B6.1 The Bid Submission consists of the following components:
  - (a) Form A: Bid;
  - (b) Form B: Prices;
  - (c) Form G1: Bid Bond and Agreement to Bond, or Form G2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit and Undertaking, or a certified cheque or draft;
- B6.2 All components of the Bid Submission shall be fully completed or provided, and submitted by the Bidder no later than the Submission Deadline, with all required entries made clearly and completely in ink, to constitute a responsive Bid.
- B6.3 The Bid Submission shall be submitted enclosed and sealed in an envelope clearly marked with the Bid Opportunity number and the Bidder's name and address.
- B6.3.1 Samples or other components of the Bid Submission which cannot reasonably be enclosed in the envelope may be packaged separately, but shall be clearly marked with the Bid Opportunity number, the Bidder's name and address, and an indication that the contents are part of the Bidder's Bid Submission.
- B6.4 Bid Submissions submitted by facsimile transmission (fax) or internet electronic mail (e-mail) will not be accepted.
- B6.5 Bid Submissions shall be submitted to:

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Finance Department Materials Management Branch 185 King Street, Main Floor Winnipeg MB R3B 1J1

#### B7. BID

- B7.1 The Bidder shall complete Form A: Bid, making all required entries.
- B7.2 Paragraph 2 of Form A: Bid shall be completed in accordance with the following requirements:
  - (a) if the Bidder is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his own name, his name shall be inserted;
  - (b) if the Bidder is a partnership, the full name of the partnership shall be inserted;
  - (c) if the Bidder is a corporation, the full name of the corporation shall be inserted;
  - (d) if the Bidder is carrying on business under a name other than his own, the business name and the name of every partner or corporation who is the owner of such business name shall be inserted.
- B7.2.1 If a Bid is submitted jointly by two or more persons, each and all such persons shall identify themselves in accordance with B7.2.
- B7.3 In Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid, the Bidder shall identify a contact person who is authorized to represent the Bidder for purposes of the Bid.
- B7.4 Paragraph 12 of Form A: Bid shall be signed in accordance with the following requirements:
  - (a) if the Bidder is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his own name, it shall be signed by the Bidder;

- (b) if the Bidder is a partnership, it shall be signed by the partner or partners who have authority to sign for the partnership;
- (c) if the Bidder is a corporation, it shall be signed by its duly authorized officer or officers and the corporate seal, if the corporation has one, should be affixed;
- (d) if the Bidder is carrying on business under a name other than his own, it shall be signed by the registered owner of the business name, or by the registered owner's authorized officials if the owner is a partnership or a corporation.
- B7.4.1 The name and official capacity of all individuals signing Form A: Bid shall be printed below such signatures.
- B7.4.2 All signatures shall be original and shall be witnessed except where a corporate seal has been affixed.
- B7.5 If a Bid is submitted jointly by two or more persons, the word "Bidder" shall mean each and all such persons, and the undertakings, covenants and obligations of such joint Bidders in the Bid Submission and the Contract, when awarded, shall be both joint and several.

#### B8. PRICES

- B8.1 The Bidder shall state a price in Canadian funds for each item of the Work identified on Form B: Prices.
- B8.1.1 Notwithstanding GC.9.01(1), prices on Form B: Prices shall not include the Goods and Services Tax (GST), which shall be extra where applicable.
- B8.2 The quantities listed on Form B: Prices are to be considered approximate only. The City will use said quantities for the purpose of comparing Bids.
- B8.3 The quantities for which payment will be made to the Contractor are to be determined by the Work actually performed and completed by the Contractor, to be measured as specified in the applicable Specifications.

#### **B9.** QUALIFICATION

- B9.1 The Bidder shall:
  - (a) undertake to be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Bidder does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Bidder does carry on business;
  - (b) be responsible and not be suspended, debarred or in default of any obligation to the City;
  - (c) be financially capable of carrying out the terms of the Contract;
  - (d) have all the necessary experience, capital, organization, and equipment to perform the Work in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract;
  - (e) have successfully carried out work, similar in nature, scope and value to the Work;
  - (f) employ only Subcontractors who:
    - (i) are responsible and not suspended, debarred or in default of any obligation to the City (a list of suspended or debarred individuals and companies is available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt); and
    - (ii) have successfully carried out work similar in nature, scope and value to the portion of the Work proposed to be subcontracted to them, and are fully capable of

performing the Work required to be done in accordance with the terms of the Contract;

- (g) have a written workplace safety and health program in accordance with The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba).
- B9.2 The Bidder shall be prepared to submit, within three (3) Business Days of a request by the Contract Administrator, proof satisfactory to the Contract Administrator of the qualifications of the Bidder and of any proposed Subcontractor.
- B9.3 The Bidder shall provide, on the request of the Contract Administrator, full access to any of the Bidder's equipment and facilities to confirm, to the Contract Administrator's satisfaction, that the Bidder's equipment and facilities are adequate to perform the Work.

#### B10. BID SECURITY

- B10.1 The Bidder shall provide bid security in the form of:
  - (a) a bid bond, in the amount of at least fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price, and agreement to bond of a company registered to conduct the business of a surety in Manitoba, in the form included in the Bid Submission (Form G1: Bid Bond and Agreement to Bond); or
  - (b) an irrevocable standby letter of credit, in the amount of at least fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price, and undertaking issued by a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba and drawn on a branch located in Winnipeg, in the form included in the Bid Submission (Form G2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit and Undertaking); or
  - (c) a certified cheque or draft payable to "The City of Winnipeg", in the amount of at least fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price, drawn on a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba.
- B10.1.1 If the Bidder submits alternative bids, the bid security shall be in the amount of the specified percentage of the highest Total Annual Bid Price submitted.
- B10.2 The bid security of the successful Bidder and the next two lowest evaluated responsive and responsible Bidders will be released by the City when a Contract for the Work has been duly executed by the successful Bidder and the performance security furnished as provided herein. The bid securities of all other Bidders will be released when a Contract is awarded.
- B10.2.1 Where the bid security provided by the successful Bidder is in the form of a certified cheque or draft pursuant to B10.1(c), it will be deposited and retained by the City as the performance security and no further submission is required.
- B10.2.2 The City will not pay any interest on certified cheques or drafts furnished as bid security or subsequently retained as performance security.
- B10.3 The bid securities of all Bidders will be released by the City as soon as practicable following notification by the Contract Administrator to the Bidders that no award of Contract will be made pursuant to the Bid Opportunity.

#### B11. OPENING OF BIDS AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION

- B11.1 Bid Submissions will be opened publicly, after the Submission Deadline has elapsed, in the office of the Corporate Finance Department, Materials Management Branch, or in such other office as may be designated by the Manager of Materials.
- B11.1.1 Bidders or their representatives may attend.

- B11.1.2 Bid Submissions determined by the Manager of Materials, or his designate, to not include the bid security specified in B10 will not be read out.
- B11.2 After the public opening, the names of the Bidders and their Total Annual Bid Prices as read out (unevaluated, and pending review and verification of conformance with requirements) will be available on the Closed Bid Opportunities (or Public/Posted Opening & Award Results) page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.
- B11.3 After award of Contract, the name(s) of the successful Bidder(s) and the Contract Amount(s) will be available on the Closed Bid Opportunities (or Public/Posted Opening & Award Results) page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.
- B11.4 The Bidder is advised that any information contained in any Bid Submission may be released if required by City policy or procedures, by The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Manitoba), by other authorities having jurisdiction, or by law.

#### B12. IRREVOCABLE BID

- B12.1 The Bid(s) submitted by the Bidder shall be irrevocable for the time period specified in Paragraph 11 of Form A: Bid.
- B12.2 The acceptance by the City of any Bid shall not release the Bids of the next two lowest evaluated responsive Bidders and these Bidders shall be bound by their Bids on such Work until a Contract for the Work has been duly executed and the performance security furnished as herein provided, but any Bid shall be deemed to have lapsed unless accepted within the time period specified in Paragraph 11 of Form A: Bid.

#### B13. WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

- B13.1 A Bidder may withdraw his Bid without penalty by giving written notice to the Manager of Materials at any time prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B13.1.1 Notwithstanding GC.7.06(2), the time and date of receipt of any notice withdrawing a Bid shall be the time and date of receipt as determined by the Manager of Materials.
- B13.1.2 The City will assume that any one of the contact persons named in Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid or the Bidder's authorized representatives named in Paragraph 12 of Form A: Bid, and only such person, has authority to give notice of withdrawal.
- B13.1.3 If a Bidder gives notice of withdrawal prior to the Submission Deadline, the Manager of Materials shall:
  - (a) retain the Bid Submission until after the Submission Deadline has elapsed;
  - (b) open the Bid Submission to identify the contact person named in Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid and the Bidder's authorized representatives named in Paragraph 12 of Form A: Bid; and
  - (c) if the notice has been given by any one of the persons specified in B13.1.3(b), declare the Bid withdrawn.
- B13.2 A Bidder who withdraws his Bid after the Submission Deadline but before his Bid has been released or has lapsed as provided for in B12.2 shall be liable for such damages as are imposed upon the Bidder by law and subject to such sanctions as the Chief Administrative Officer considers appropriate in the circumstances. The City, in such event, shall be entitled to all rights and remedies available to it at law, including the right to retain the Bidder's bid security.

#### B14. EVALUATION OF BIDS

- B14.1 Award of the Contract shall be based on the following bid evaluation criteria:
  - (a) compliance by the Bidder with the requirements of the Bid Opportunity (pass/fail);
  - (b) qualifications of the Bidder and the Subcontractors, if any, pursuant to B9 (pass/fail);
  - (c) Total Annual Bid Price;
  - (d) economic analysis of any approved alternative pursuant to B5.
- B14.2 Further to B14.1(a), the Award Authority may reject a Bid as being non-responsive if the Bid Submission is incomplete, obscure or conditional, or contains additions, deletions, alterations or other irregularities. The Award Authority may reject all or any part of any Bid, or waive technical requirements if the interests of the City so require.
- B14.3 Further to B14.1(b), the Award Authority shall reject any Bid submitted by a Bidder who does not demonstrate, in his Bid Submission or in other information required to be submitted, that he is responsible and qualified.
- B14.4 Further to B14.1(c), the Total Annual Bid Price shall be the sum of the quantities multiplied by the unit prices for each item shown on Form B: Prices.
- B14.4.1 If there is any discrepancy between the Total Annual Bid Price written in figures, the Total Annual Bid Price written in words and the sum of the quantities multiplied by the unit prices for each item, the sum of the quantities multiplied by the unit prices for each item shall take precedence.

#### B15. AWARD OF CONTRACT

- B15.1 The City will give notice of the award of the Contract by way of a letter of intent, or will give notice that no award will be made.
- B15.2 The City will have no obligation to award a Contract to a Bidder, even though one or all of the Bidders are determined to be responsible and qualified, and the Bids are determined to be responsive.
- B15.2.1 Without limiting the generality of B15.2, the City will have no obligation to award a Contract where:
  - (a) the prices exceed the available City funds for the Work;
  - (b) the prices are materially in excess of the prices received for similar work in the past;
  - (c) the prices are materially in excess of the City's cost to perform the Work, or a significant portion thereof, with its own forces;
  - (d) only one Bid is received; or
  - (e) in the judgment of the Award Authority, the interests of the City would best be served by not awarding a Contract.
- B15.3 Where an award of Contract is made by the City, the award shall be made to the responsible and qualified Bidder submitting the lowest evaluated responsive Bid.

# **PART C - GENERAL CONDITIONS**

#### C1. GENERAL CONDITIONS

- C1.1 The General Conditions for Provision of Services (Revision 1996 02 05) are applicable to the Work of the Contract.
- C1.1.1 The General Conditions for Provision of Services are available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.

### **PART D - SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS**

#### GENERAL

#### D1. GENERAL CONDITIONS

- D1.1 In addition to the *General Conditions for Provision of Services*, these Supplemental Conditions are applicable to the Work of the Contract.
- D1.2 The General Conditions are amended by striking out "The City of Winnipeg Act" wherever it appears in the General Conditions and substituting "The City of Winnipeg Charter".
- D1.3 The General Conditions are amended by striking out "Board of Commissioners" or "Commissioner" wherever it appears in the General Conditions and substituting the "Chief Administrative Officer".
- D1.4 The General Conditions are amended by striking out "Tender Package" wherever it appears in the General Conditions and substituting "Bid Opportunity".
- D1.5 The General Conditions are amended by striking out "Tender Submission" wherever it appears in the General Conditions and substituting "Bid Submission".
- D1.6 The General Conditions are amended by striking out "Bidding Instructions" wherever it appears in the General Conditions and substituting "Bidding Procedures".

#### D2. SCOPE OF WORK

- D2.1 The Work to be done under the Contract shall include the Manual collection and proper disposal of all garbage generated from all residential and small commercial premises which are entitled to such services and which do not utilize mechanical-loading metal bins for garbage storage all as governed by the latest amended Solid Waste By-Law No. 1340/76. The areas of collection are described as three neighbourhoods of Winnipeg; St. Boniface/North St. Vital, East Kildonan/North Kildonan and Transcona.
- D2.2 The other major components of the Work are as follows:
  - (a) The scheduled and unscheduled collection of bulky waste items from residential and commercial properties that receive regular collection under this Contract.
  - (b) The scheduled and unscheduled collection of bulky waste items from multi-family residential properties that receive mechanical container collection garbage collection outside of this Contract, but within this Contract's geographical boundaries.
  - (c) The collection of garbage from litter containers located in the public right-of-way on either a cycle basis or twice per week basis.

#### D3. DURATION OF CONTRACT

D3.1 Notwithstanding GC.8.01, the Contractor shall perform the Work of this Contract on a scheduled basis during the period of February 1, 2006 to January 31, 2012:

#### D4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

D4.1 The Contract Administrator is:

Darryl E. Drohomerski, C.E.T. Solid Waste Process Coordinator 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, 1539 Waverley Street Winnipeg, MB R3T 4V7

Telephone No. (204) 986-4484 Facsimile No. (204) 774-6729

D4.2 At the pre-commencement meeting, the Contract Administrator will identify additional personnel representing the Contract Administrator and their respective roles and responsibilities for the Work.

#### D5. CONTRACTOR'S SUPERVISOR

D5.1 At the pre-commencement meeting, the Contractor shall identify his designated supervisor and any additional personnel representing the Contractor and their respective roles and responsibilities for the Work.

#### D6. NOTICES

- D6.1 GC.7.06 is hereby amended to delete reference to "registered mail" and to replace same with "ordinary mail".
- D6.2 GC.7.06 is further amended hereby to include delivery by facsimile transmission (fax) as an acceptable means of delivering notices, consents, approvals, statements, authorizations, documents or other communications required or permitted to be given under this Contract. Deliveries by fax will be deemed to have been received on the day of delivery, if a business day, or if not a business day, on the business day next following the day of delivery.
- D6.3 Further to GC.7.06, all notices, consents, approvals, statements, authorizations, documents or other communications to the City, except as expressly otherwise required in D6.4, D6.5 or elsewhere in the Contract, shall be sent to the attention of the Contract Administrator at the address or facsimile number identified in D4.1.
- D6.4 All notices of appeal to the Chief Administrative Officer shall be sent to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer at the following address or facsimile number:

The City of Winnipeg Chief Administrative Officer Secretariat Administration Building, 3rd Floor 510 Main Street Winnipeg MB R3B 1B9

Facsimile No.: (204) 949-1174

D6.5 All notices, requests, nominations, proposals, consents, approvals, statements, authorizations, documents or other communications required to be submitted or returned to the City Solicitor shall be sent to the following address or facsimile number:

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Services Department Legal Services Division 185 King Street, 3rd Floor Winnipeg MB R3B 1J1

Facsimile No.: (204) 947-9155

#### SUBMISSIONS

#### D7. AUTHORITY TO CARRY ON BUSINESS

D7.1 The Contractor shall be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Contractor does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Contractor does carry on business, throughout the term of the Contract, and shall provide the Contract Administrator with evidence thereof upon request.

#### D8. WORKERS COMPENSATION

D8.1 The Contractor shall be registered with the Workers Compensation Board of Manitoba, shall provide and maintain Workers Compensation coverage throughout the term of the Contract, and shall provide the Contract Administrator with evidence thereof upon request.

#### D9. INSURANCE

- D9.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain the following insurance coverage:
  - (a) commercial general liability insurance, in the amount of at least five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) all inclusive, with The City of Winnipeg being added as an additional insured, with a cross-liability clause, such liability policy to also contain a contractual liability, an unlicensed motor vehicle liability and a products and completed operations endorsement to remain in place at all times during the performance of the Work and throughout the warranty period;
  - (b) automobile liability insurance for owned and non-owned automobiles used for or in connection with the Work in the amount of at least five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) at all times during the performance of the Work and until the date of Total Performance.
- D9.2 Deductibles shall be borne by the Contractor.
- D9.3 The Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with a certificate of insurance of each policy at least fourteen (14) Business Days prior to the commencement of any Work on the Site but in no event later than the date specified in GC.3.01 for the return of the executed Contract.
- D9.4 The Contractor shall not cancel, materially alter, or cause each policy to lapse without providing at least thirty (30) Calendar Days prior written notice to the Contract Administrator.

#### D10. PERFORMANCE SECURITY

- D10.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain Performance Security until one (1) month from the total performance of the Contract in the form of:
  - a) Performance Bonds of a company registered to conduct the business of a surety in Manitoba in the forms attached to these Supplemental Conditions (Form H1: Performance Bonds); the first ("Initial Performance Security") for three years in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the annual value of the Contract, and subsequent performance bonds ("Renewal Performance Security"). Each such Renewal Performance Security shall be no less than one (1) year in duration and in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the annual value of the Contract. In addition to the Performance Bond, the Contractor shall provide an irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit issued by a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba, in the form attached to these Supplemental Conditions (Form H2:

Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit), in the amount of fifteen percent (15%) of the annual value of the Contract. Failure by the Contractor to maintain performance security shall constitute a default under this Contract entitling the City to draw the full proceeds of the Standby Letter of Credit without notice and any such monies may be used as provided in this Contract in the event of default; or

- b) an irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit issued by a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba, in the form attached to these Supplemental Conditions (Form H2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit), in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the annual value of the Contract; or
- c) a certified cheque or draft payable to "The City of Winnipeg", drawn on a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba, in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the annual value of the Contract.
- D10.1.1 Where the performance security is in the form of a certified cheque or draft, it will be deposited by the City. The City will not pay any interest on certified cheques or drafts furnished as performance security.
- D10.2 If the bid security provided in his Bid Submission was not a certified cheque or draft pursuant to B10.1(c), the Contractor shall provide the City Solicitor with the required performance security within thirty (30) Calendar Days of notification of the award of the Contract by way of letter of intent and prior to the commencement of any Work on the Site but in no event later than the date specified in GC.3.01 for the return of the executed Contract.

#### D10.3 <u>Renewal of Performance Security</u>

(a) Further to D10.1(a), the Renewal Performance Security shall be provided to the City no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the expiry of the Current Performance Security.

#### SCHEDULE OF WORK

#### D11. COMMENCEMENT

- D11.1 The Contractor shall not commence any Work until he is in receipt of a letter of intent from the Award Authority authorizing the commencement of the Work.
- D11.2 The Contractor shall not commence any Work on the Site until:
  - (a) the Contract Administrator has confirmed receipt and approval of:
    - evidence that the Contractor is in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba;
    - (ii) evidence of the workers compensation coverage specified in D8;
    - (iii) the performance security specified in D10; and
    - (iv) evidence of the insurance specified in D9.

#### D12. PRIME CONTRACTOR – THE WORKPLACE SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT (MANITOBA)

D12.1 Further to GC.5.02, the Contractor shall be the Prime Contractor and shall serve as, and have the duties of the Prime Contractor in accordance with The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba).

#### MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

#### D13. PAYMENT SCHEDULE

- D13.1 Further to GC.9.01 and GC.9.03, payment shall be in accordance with the following payment schedule:
  - (a) Payments to the Contractor will be made following the end of each month based on a certificate prepared by the Contract Administrator indicating the number of units for each payment item in the Form B: Prices. Month end payments will be on the basis of one-twelfth (1/12) of the annual tendered unit price for each payment item collected fully or added to the collection list during the previous month (except for bulky waste collections, which are on a per-premises collection basis). In balance, no compensation will be applied for payment items deleted at any point during the previous month.
  - (b) The Contractor will be allowed a thirty (30) day period after any payment certificate is initiated by the Contract Administrator for objection to the quantities therein, with such statement of objection, in writing, to be accompanied by a location pickup list showing the Contractor's quantity considerations. The decision of the Contract Administrator will be final following a review of such objection.
  - (c) Payment shall be in Canadian funds net fifteen (15) Calendar Days after conclusion of the previous month's Work.

#### D14. ANNUAL REVIEW – INFLATIONARY ADJUSTMENT:

- D14.1 The unit prices specified on Form B: Prices will be adjusted on the first Contract anniversary date, and subsequent anniversary dates based on the percentage increase or decrease in unit prices for the Contract year, based on eighty-five percent (85%) of the Consumer Price Index for Canada. The calculation of the adjustment will be based on January of the previous year to January of the current year Nonetheless; the maximum annual adjustment shall not exceed 10%.
- D14.2 The indices above will be those prepared by Statistics Canada. Since the indices may not be available from Statistics Canada until some time after the adjustment date, the amount of adjustment will be retroactive to the adjustment date.

#### WARRANTY

#### D15. WARRANTY

D15.1 Notwithstanding GC.10.01, GC.10.02, the Contractor shall, at his sole cost and expense, maintain the Work against any and all claims or deficiencies or otherwise which may arise for a period of one (1) month from the end of the contract.

#### D16. CONCLUSION OF WARRANTY PERIOD

D16.1 At least two (2) weeks prior to the expiration of the Warranty Period, or upon correction of all outstanding deficiencies, whichever is later, the contractor shall arrange, attend and assist in the acceptance of the Work. The Contract Administrator shall, on being satisfied that all outstanding deficiencies have been corrected, issue a Certificate of Acceptance for the Work to be dated not earlier than one (1) month after the date of Certificate of Total Performance or the date that the Contractor corrects the final deficiencies, whichever is the later, thereby terminating the Warranty Period. The Certificate of Acceptance will, subject to Clause GC.10.02, indicate acceptance of the due performance of the Contract.

#### D16.2 Extension of Warranty Period

(a) Further to Clause GC.10.02 of the General Conditions, in the event that all outstanding deficiencies have not been corrected to the satisfaction of the Contract Administrator at least one (1) week prior to the expiration of the Warranty Period, the Contractor shall be required to provide and maintain, at his sole cost and expense, an extension of the Performance Bond for a further one (1) month term with regard to those items of work that have been identified as still being deficient. Failure to do so shall result in the City realizing on the Performance Security.

#### FORM H1: PERFORMANCE BOND- INITIAL PERFORMANCE SECURITY (See D10)

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT

(hereinafter called the "Principal"), and

(hereinafter called the "Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto **THE CITY OF WINNIPEG** (hereinafter called the "Obligee"), in the sum of

\_\_\_\_\_ dollars (\$\_\_\_\_\_\_)

of lawful money of Canada to be paid to the Obligee, or its successors or assigns, for the payment of which sum the Principal and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS the Principal has entered into a written contract with the Obligee dated the

\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_ , 20\_\_\_\_ , for:

T BID OPPORTUNITY NO 224-2005

# RESIDENTIAL MANUAL GARBAGE COLLECTION SERVICES IN THE NORTHEAST AREA OF WINNIPEG

which is by reference made part hereof and is hereinafter referred to as the "Contract".

NOW THEREFORE the condition of the above obligation is such that if the Principal shall:

- (a) carry out and perform the Contract and every part thereof in the manner and within the times set forth in the Contract and in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Contract;
- (b) perform the Work in a good, proper, workmanlike manner;
- (c) make all the payments whether to the Obligee or to others as therein provided;
- (d) in every other respect comply with the conditions and perform the covenants contained in the Contract; and

(e) indemnify and save harmless the Obligee against and from all loss, costs, damages, claims, and demands of every description as set forth in the Contract, and from all penalties, assessments, claims, actions for loss, damages or compensation whether arising under "The Workers Compensation Act", or any other Act or otherwise arising out of or in any way connected with the performance or non-performance of the Contract or any part thereof during the first three (3) years of the Contract;

THEN THIS OBLIGATION SHALL BE VOID, but otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. The Surety shall not, however, be liable for a greater sum than the sum specified above. Notwithstanding the terms of the Contract, non-renewal of the bond shall not be considered a default hereunder.

AND IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND AGREED that the Surety shall be liable as Principal, and that nothing of any kind or matter whatsoever that will not discharge the Principal shall operate as a discharge or release of liability of the Surety, any law or usage relating to the liability of Sureties to the contrary notwithstanding.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Principal and Surety have signed and sealed this bond the

, 20	
(Name of Principal)	
(Name of Surety) By: (Attorney-in-Fact)	(Seal)
	(Name of Principal)   Per:   Per:   (Name of Surety)   By:

#### FORM H1: PERFORMANCE BOND- RENEWAL PERFORMANCE SECURITY

(See D10)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT

(hereinafter called the "Principal"), and

(hereinafter called the "Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto **THE CITY OF WINNIPEG** (hereinafter called the "Obligee"), in the sum of

\_\_\_\_\_ dollars (\$\_\_\_\_\_.

of lawful money of Canada to be paid to the Obligee, or its successors or assigns, for the payment of which sum the Principal and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS the Principal has entered into a written contract with the Obligee dated the

\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ , 20\_\_\_\_ , for:

BID OPPORTUNITY NO. 224-2005

# RESIDENTIAL MANUAL GARBAGE COLLECTION SERVICES IN THE NORTHEAST AREA OF WINNIPEG

which is by reference made part hereof and is hereinafter referred to as the "Contract".

NOW THEREFORE the condition of the above obligation is such that if the Principal shall:

- (a) carry out and perform the Contract and every part thereof in the manner and within the times set forth in the Contract and in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Contract;
- (b) perform the Work in a good, proper, workmanlike manner;
- (c) make all the payments whether to the Obligee or to others as therein provided;
- (d) in every other respect comply with the conditions and perform the covenants contained in the Contract; and

(e) indemnify and save harmless the Obligee against and from all loss, costs, damages, claims, and demands of every description as set forth in the Contract, and from all penalties, assessments, claims, actions for loss, damages or compensation whether arising under "The Workers Compensation Act", or any other Act or otherwise arising out of or in any way connected with the performance or non-performance of the Contract or any part thereof for the period from

(DD/MM/YY) to and including (DD/MM/YY). THEN THIS OBLIGATION SHALL BE VOID, but otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. The Surety shall not, however, be liable for a greater sum than the sum specified above. Notwithstanding the terms of the Contract, non-renewal of the bond shall not be considered a default hereunder. AND IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND AGREED that the Surety shall be liable as Principal, and that nothing of any kind or matter whatsoever that will not discharge the Principal shall operate as a discharge or release of liability of the Surety, any law or usage relating to the liability of Sureties to the contrary notwithstanding.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Principal and Surety have signed and sealed this bond the

\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ , 20\_\_\_\_ .

SIGNED AND SEALED in the presence of:

(Witness)

(Name of Principal)	
Per:	(Seal)
Per:	
(Name of Surety)	
	(Seal)

#### FORM H2: IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT (PERFORMANCE SECURITY) (See D10)

(Date)

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Services Department Legal Services Division 185 King Street, 3rd Floor Winnipeg MB R3B 1J1

#### RE: PERFORMANCE SECURITY - BID OPPORTUNITY NO. 224-2005

RESIDENTIAL MANUAL GARBAGE COLLECTION SERVICES IN THE NORTHEAST AREA OF WINNIPEG

Pursuant to the request of and for the account of our customer,

(Name of Contractor)

(Address of Contractor)

WE HEREBY ESTABLISH in your favour our irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit for a sum not exceeding in the aggregate

Canadian dollars.

This Standby Letter of Credit may be drawn on by you at any time and from time to time upon written demand for payment made upon us by you. It is understood that we are obligated under this Standby Letter of Credit for the payment of monies only and we hereby agree that we shall honour your demand for payment without inquiring whether you have a right as between yourself and our customer to make such demand and without recognizing any claim of our customer or objection by the customer to payment by us.

The amount of this Standby Letter of Credit may be reduced from time to time only by amounts drawn upon it by you or by formal notice in writing given to us by you if you desire such reduction or are willing that it be made.

Partial drawings are permitted.

We engage with you that all demands for payment made within the terms and currency of this Standby Letter of Credit will be duly honoured if presented to us at:

(Address)

and we confirm and hereby undertake to ensure that all demands for payment will be duly honoured by us.

All demands for payment shall specifically state that they are drawn under this Standby Letter of Credit.

Subject to the condition hereinafter set forth, this Standby Letter of Credit will expire on

(Date)

It is a condition of this Standby Letter of Credit that it shall be deemed to be automatically extended from year to year without amendment from the present or any future expiry date, unless at least 30 days prior to the present or any future expiry date, we notify you in writing that we elect not to consider this Standby Letter of Credit to be renewable for any additional period.

This Standby Letter of Credit may not be revoked or amended without your prior written approval.

This credit is subject to the Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credit (1993 Revision), International Chamber of Commerce Publication Number 500.

(Name of bank or financial institution)

Per:

(Authorized Signing Officer)

Per:

(Authorized Signing Officer)

## PART E - SPECIFICATIONS

#### E1. GENERAL

- E1.1 These Specifications shall apply to the Work.
- E1.2 The Drawings included in this Work are as follows: Drawing No. Drawing Title WW-CC-01E Front Street and Back Lane Collection Locations WW-CC-02E Collection Pickup by Day Cycle.

#### E2. UNIT PRICES

E2.1 The unit prices shall be payment in full for the annual collection and transportation of garbage to the Brady Road Landfill for each separate service delivery to a defined premises type. For payment purposes only, all residential and commercial premises between one and seven units in size shall be considered as a single collection point or location. For the purposes of the Work, locations shall be defined as collection stops or individual property. Multiple residential units, eight units and over, will, for the purposes of payment under this Contract, be considered as an apartment block in accordance with E4.

#### E3. CONTRACT QUANTITIES

- E3.1 The Contractor shall note that Form B: Prices indicates an estimated number of units as of June 1, 2005. These figures are approximate only and are to be used only for purposes of comparison of tenders. Payments will be based on quantities serviced, as certified monthly by the Contract Administrator. It is noted that the totals shown for residential premises include residential premises at commercial locations with shared dwelling units. These locations are considered a single dwelling unit as described in E4. E28 defines the non-residential inventory of the Works as of June 1, 2005.
- E3.2 The frequency of collection from apartment blocks, and commercial establishments shall be as specified in E28 herein or as modified in writing from time to time by the Contract Administrator.
- E3.3 Residential services shall be extended to all new residential locations, and will be paid accordingly, whenever a Building Permit status has been changed from "Active" to "Closed" indicating that the premise is habitable and designating it as a taxable and serviceable dwelling. Similarly, residential services shall be ceased, and payment quantities reduced accordingly, whenever demolition, abandonment or other circumstances cause termination of garbage generation at a location.
- E3.4 For all multi-family and commercial service categories, service shall be extended to all new or additional units immediately when directed in writing by the Contract Administrator
- E3.5 The number of units serviced by this Contract for all non-residential service categories shall also be reduced when any premises is no longer generating solid waste or when a commercial premises converts to a container with collection outside this Contract. All such changes shall be carried out when directed in writing by the Contract Administrator. Should any service deletions occur that are not identified by the Contract Administrator, they shall be so reported. Where they fail to be reported, payment for that premises for the period for which the service was not provided will be deleted as determined by the Contract Administrator. This shall not apply when the unit or any part thereof is not generating waste because of normal vacation absence of occupant.
- E3.6 The Contractor shall note that customers have the right to use or reject solid waste collection service arranged through the City, and therefore the City cannot guarantee the actual number of

premises under this Contract. Also, the Contract Administrator may designate the type of collection to be used, which may cause an increase or a reduction in the number of premises served.

E3.7 The following table shall be used as a reference for the number of locations (stops) per collection day as well as the number of dwelling units at each location:

Day Cycle	Dwelling Unit Counts							
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Grand Total
1	7,818	69	9	11	1	2	0	7,910
2	7,972	165	27	19	6	7	0	8,196
3	7,255	241	5	7	1	2	0	7,511
4	9,795	54	14	8	2	5	2	9,880
5	7,496	353	102	66	32	45	5	8,099
Total	40,336	882	157	111	42	61	7	41,596

E3.8 The following table is the 2004 Monthly Tonnes for the Contract area broken down by months

Month	Tonnes	Month	Tonnes
January	2,366	July	3,214
February	1,650	August	3,091
March	2,033	September	3,745
April	3,149	October	3,784
May	2,872	November	2,848
June	3,923	December	1,832

#### E4. PAYMENTS

- E4.1 Payments will be made for the following collection service categories defined on Form B: Prices, as "Items". (Note: All collections are to be from premises-supplied garbage cans or bags unless otherwise stated).
  - (a) For each residential location, church and charitable institution for the removal of all garbage, rubbish and ashes on a five-day cycle basis at the tendered price <u>per year</u> for each location <u>served by either a back lane or by front street.</u>
  - (b) For each apartment block for the manual removal of all garbage, rubbish and ashes on a <u>five-day cycle</u> basis at the tendered price <u>per year</u> for each apartment block category, as follows:
    - (i) 8 15 suites

- (c) For each apartment block for the manual removal (from garbage bags or cans) of all garbage, rubbish and ashes on a <u>twice per week</u> basis at the tendered price <u>per year</u> for each apartment block category:
  - (i) 8 15 suites
- (d) For each commercial establishment for the manual removal of all garbage, rubbish and ashes on a <u>five-day cycle</u> basis at the tendered price <u>per year</u> for each premises.
- (e) For each residential location designated for special walk-in service for the handicapped at the tendered price <u>per year</u> for each premises.
- (f) For each litter container, located immediately adjacent to a city roadway or within 10m of a roadway, on a five-day cycle basis at the tendered price <u>per year</u> for each location
- (g) For each litter container, located immediately adjacent to a city roadway or within 10m of a roadway, on a <u>twice per week</u> basis at the tendered price <u>per year</u> for each location
- (h) For each residential or apartment premises provided with an "authorized" or an "abandoned" bulky waste pick-up in accordance with E6.

#### E5. SERVICE FOR HANDICAPPED PERSONS

E5.1 At those premises designated by the Contract Administrator, the Contractor shall provide "walkin service" to collect from a location adjacent to the house. Empty containers and lids shall be replaced at the storage location. This service is applicable only to specifically approved residential premises (either served by a back lane or front street) designated by the Contract Administrator when the occupants meet the criteria with respect to medical conditions. Payment is in accordance with E4.1(e). Walk-in service shall not be provided for bulky wastes. Bulky wastes for residential premises provided with "walk-in service" shall be treated in the same manner as any other residential premises.

#### E6. LITTER CONTAINER COLLECTION

- E6.1 The containers for collection in the right-of-way are described as either a 0.45m<sup>2</sup> square by 1m high exposed aggregate concrete container, typically referred to as a "Take Pride" litter container; a 0.45m wide by 1.5m long by 1.2m high recycling/garbage receptacle commonly referred to as "Silverbox" or "OMG" container; or any other receptacle deemed eligible for collection by the Contract Administrator.
- E6.2 For the Silverbox, only litter will be removed under this Work. Recycling contents will be removed by others. Entry to the Silverbox requires a key. Ten (10) copies of the key will be given to the Contractor at the beginning of the Work. If more are required, there may be a cost associated with replacement.

#### E7. BULKY WASTES COLLECTION SERVICES

E7.1 Bulky Wastes are defined by the Solid Waste By-Law [Clause 2(d)] as large items of garbage exceeding 34 kilograms (75 pounds) in weight or exceeding 1.5 metres (5 feet) in any direction, including large appliances and furniture, hot water tanks, mattresses and carpets, but excluding automobile parts regardless of size or weight. Notwithstanding statements to the contrary which may be contained in the Solid Waste By-Law 1340/76, and amendments thereto, tires, smaller cardboard boxes, Christmas trees, tree cuttings approximately one metre in length and approximately 100 mm in diameter, in bundles not exceeding 34 kg and such materials shall not be considered as bulky wastes and shall be collected with the regular collection of the garbage. The placement of these items is required to be in accordance with the placement of bulky wastes as specified in the Solid Waste By-Law (By-Law 1340/76) as amended. As a matter of

clarification, please note that bulky wastes may be generated by any type collected, including apartment, commercial or charitable premises in the Contract service area not serviced under these Works, but under the City of Winnipeg's Mechanical Collection Contract.

- E7.2 It is noted, however, that Provincial Regulations preclude the collection of appliances such as fridges, freezers and air conditioners, which contain CFC's (chloroflurocarbonate depleters of the earth's protective ozone layer). The City collects such material under separate contract. It is a Provincial penalty to dispose of CFC devices with garbage collection. Any individual or firm caught doing so is liable for fines beginning at \$10,000 per incident as per the Provincial Ozone Depleting Substances Act. (CCSM 080)
- E7.3 Except for abandoned bulky items, the Contractor shall only collect bulky wastes that are formally authorized and specifically requested by the Contract Administrator for pick-up. Such collections shall be either along with the regular collection activities or under a separate collection as noted by the Contractor and declared to the Contract Administrator prior to the initial commencement of these Works. The Contractor shall schedule a bulky waste pick-up for a minimum of one working day for each cycle period (namely cycle day or specific day of the week).
- E7.4 The Contract Administrator will notify the Contractor of all required bulky waste collections by phone, facsimile or electronic means and the Contractor shall collect all bulky wastes identified and properly placed out for collection at the premises in the next scheduled bulky waste pick-up. Failure to do so shall constitute each pick-up declared a service deficiency under E15.8. The intent of the Contract is that the Contractor shall collect all bulky wastes placed out for pick-up in the Contract service area within one collection cycle of being notified of the required pick-up.

Any such material bypassed as outside By-Law limits, when confirmed by the Contract Administrator, will not be considered as a service deficiency.

- E7.5 Further to E7.3 above, it is the intent of this Contract that bulky waste items, which have been "abandoned" within the street/lane collection rights-of-way, shall be collected as part of these Works. For purposes of this Contract, the term "abandoned bulky waste" shall mean any "unauthorized" bulky waste that remains in the public collection right-of-way for two weeks after placement, and which has not been formally directed for collection under E7.3 above. Where a bulky item qualifies as an "abandoned bulky waste", it shall be collected by the Contractor as a bulky waste premises collection.
- E7.6 To aid in the interpretation of any bulky waste item as being "abandoned" and therefore to be collected under these Works, the following criteria shall apply:
  - (a) the bulky waste must be located in the public right-of-way;
  - (b) does not contain any C.F.C.'s; and
  - (c) must satisfy one of the following conditions:
    - (i) the material's type and location has been identified and communicated to the Contractor by the Contract Administrator as "abandoned"; or
    - (ii) the material has been by-passed by the Contractor as a non-authorized bulky waste collection [under E7.3 above] at least twice; or
    - (iii) the material location is such that the bulky item is clearly derelict, and the making of collection arrangements is clearly being avoided by the owner.
- E7.7 The payment for the collection of bulky wastes shall be in accordance with E4.1(h), with monthly quantities equal to the sum of bulky premises collections authorized by the Contract Administrator during the period, plus the total number of "abandoned" bulky collections provided during the period. The Contractor shall record the kinds and numbers of abandoned bulky items collected at each premises, and shall submit an aggregate list of all such abandoned collections

to the Contract Administrator each month in time for incorporation into the monthly Progress Estimate.

#### E8. SCHEDULE OF COLLECTION ROUTES AND DAYS OF COLLECTION

- E8.1 The cycle days shown on Part F are as defined under the smaller service delivery areas currently in place. Consolidations of each cycle day shall be done on a large area basis to minimize the number of areas in which vehicle are working daily.
- E8.2 The Contractor shall provide a detailed schedule of collection routes including the starting points of each piece of equipment to be used on each cycle collection day for each route, no later than **one month prior** to the commencement of the Works of this Contract. This schedule is subject to the approval of the Contract Administrator, and shall be maintained throughout the Contract period unless formally changed in accordance with E8.7.
- E8.3 All residential pick-ups shall be scheduled on a five-day cycle basis, and other service items on a five-day cycle basis or a twice-per-week basis, as defined in E28 or as subsequently designated by the Contract Administrator.
- E8.4 A five-day cycle basis means on a schedule basis so that each premises receives collection service every fifth working day as designated by the Contract Administrator.
- E8.5 A twice per week basis means twice in each calendar week for those commercial premises, apartments and litter containers designated, and such pick-ups shall be scheduled on either Monday/Thursday or Tuesday/Friday cycles, except for statutory holidays in accordance with E9.1. In such cases, the Contractor shall provide the required twice-per-week collections on a Tuesday/Thursday, Monday/Wednesday, or Wednesday/Friday schedule, depending on the holiday day of the week -- except for the two-day Christmas holiday period, where one of the two twice-a-week schedules will be reduced to once-a-week, depending on the days of the week involved, as directed by the Contract Administrator. Missed collections associated with failure to adequately notify may be subject to the penalty provisions of E15.
- E8.6 The hours of collection shall be between 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., except in the cases of unusual delay, emergency or equipment breakdown, the Contractor may extend the hours of collection accordingly, provided that any deviation from the schedule is reported to the Contract Administrator by the Contractor immediately or as may be required elsewhere in this Contract. In any event however, the Contractor may not start earlier than 7:00 a.m. or carry out collections past 10:00 p.m.
- E8.7 Should the Contractor wish to change the schedule of pick-ups during the course of the Contract, the Contractor shall notify the Contract Administrator in writing at least eight calendar weeks prior to the proposed date of change. The Contractor is advised that the day-cycle system is also utilized by the City's Recycling Program currently provided to all single-family premises, and considerations of pick-up schedule change requests will involve this major factor as well. Accordingly, any change shall be subject to the approval of the Contract Administrator. The Contractor shall be responsible for the duplication and delivery to each affected premises of a suitable notice of the change, prepared and authorized by the Contract Administrator from relevant information supplied by the Contractor.

#### E9. PEAK PERIODS AND HOLIDAYS

E9.1 There is considerable variation in the amount of garbage to be picked up in a given area from week to week, particularly after a non-collecting holiday -- as noted below. The Contractor shall meet this variation in demand by using extra equipment, manpower or overtime if required, in order that the garbage is regularly picked up as scheduled. To accommodate extended collections during peak periods, the City's Disposal Utility has agreed to extend its hours of

operation as noted in E24.4, although the City will pass on its costs at the rate of \$150.00 per hour to all Contractors in proportion to their specific use during the period in question.

E9.2 The Contractor shall not collect garbage on Saturdays or Sundays, or on the following holidays or on days observed by the City of Winnipeg in lieu of these holidays:

New Year's DayLabourGood FridayThanksEaster MondayRememVictoria DayChristmCanada DayBoxingAugust Civic Holiday

Labour Day Thanksgiving Remembrance Day Christmas Day Boxing Day

or any other day observed as a holiday as directed by the Contract Administrator.

E9.3 The Contractor is advised that the City publishes a recycling and Garbage Collection calendar annually, which is available upon request (and is also in the back of the Winnipeg White Pages phone book).

#### E10. LIST OF EQUIPMENT

- E10.1 Full-time equipment proposed shall not be used to collect wastes outside these Works.
- E10.2 To ensure equipment suitability for effective Contract performance throughout the duration of the Works, vehicles used in the performance of these Works shall be no older than the model year 1999 without the expressed written permission of the Contract Administrator.
- E10.3 Further to the equipment information required by the Equipment Schedule, the Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with a list of all equipment, including identification numbers, to be used in the execution of this Contract, at least one month prior to starting the Contract. Whenever an addition or deletion is proposed, the Contractor shall notify the Contract Administrator in writing, one calendar week prior to this change actually taking place. Under emergency conditions caused by equipment breakdown, snow storms or similar conditions, same day notice shall be considered adequate. Equipment not previously identified to the Contract Administrator may not be allowed to dispose of collected material at no charge, to the disposal site identified in E24.

#### E11. INSPECTION

E11.1 Periodic inspections of the Contract area, including vehicle inspections and contents therein contained, may be made by the Contract Administrator to verify that the service supplied by the Contractor is adequate in all respects. If any deviations from the requirements of the Contract exist, they will be noted, and the Contractor or representative will be notified, either orally or in writing, of the corrective measures to be taken. Such periodic inspections do not relieve the Contractor in any way from making independent inspections to ensure that the work is being performed satisfactorily.

#### E12. COMMUNICATIONS REQUIREMENTS

- E12.1 The Contractor shall maintain an office, equipped with a phone and facsimile machine and staffed by a competent person, open from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., not including Saturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays.
- E12.2 The Contractor shall have a qualified field supervisor, dedicated to this Work only, on duty throughout all hours of the performance of these Works, and they must be equipped with a

cellular telephone so as to ensure a constant ability to be contacted by the City and to enable a courteous, speedy, and efficient response to all service deficiencies.

- E12.3 The Contractor shall submit to the Contract Administrator a prioritized listing of the Contractor's staff that can be contacted after the office hours noted above if required. The Contractor shall ensure that this listing is current by providing the Contract Administrator with an updated listing whenever changes to staff contacts occur.
- E12.4 Should the City be unable to contact the Contractor to respond to service deficiency concerns, the City will immediately address the deficiency in service and the associated costs shall be charged to the Contractor as liquidated damages.

#### E13. DISMISSAL OF EMPLOYEES

- E13.1 In addition to GC.5.01(4) of the General Conditions, the Contract Administrator may request the suspension, discharge, or other disciplinary action of any employee directly involved in the collection process for one or more of the following activities during working hours, and the Contractor shall comply with such request as promptly as possible:
  - (a) Found in possession of or under the influence of alcohol and/or mind-altering drugs;
  - (b) The use of foul, profane, vulgar or obscene language, or other publicly offensive behaviour;
  - (c) Solicitation of gratuities or tips from the public for services performed under this Contract;
  - (d) The refusal to collect and/or handle garbage placed out for pick-up in accordance with this Contract;
  - (e) The wanton or malicious damage or destruction of containers and/or receptacles;
  - (f) The wanton or malicious scattering or spilling of garbage;
  - (g) The provision of services by staff who are clothed in a manner that is clearly of an unacceptable public standard; or
  - (h) The scavenging or removal from the disposal stream of material placed out for collection (in violation of Paragraph 13 of the Solid Waste By-law 1340/76).

#### E14. WORK PERFORMANCE AND EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN

- E14.1 If, in the opinion of the Contract Administrator, the Contractor is not performing the work reasonably in accordance with the approved schedule, the Contract Administrator may demand, in writing, more trucks and/or staff to be provided by the Contractor immediately, and upon the Contractor's failure to provide them, the City may arrange to hire additional trucks and staff and charge the cost of such hire to the Contractor. Such supplementary support resources will continue at the Contractor's expense until the Contract Administrator is advised of a satisfactory plan of action to correct the referenced performance deficiency or until other remedy as provided in the Contract is invoked.
- E14.2 The Contractor shall immediately notify the Contract Administrator or Designate whenever peak period excesses or equipment breakdowns occur that are likely to generate delays in the regularly provided collection service. The Contract Administrator shall be advised as to the Contractor's plans to correct this deficiency in service. Should the City not be advised, then the associated uncollected premises may be deemed an area omission under E15.3 following, and subject to the performance deficiency remedies contained therein.
- E14.3 Where isolated groups of premises such as bays or street sections have erroneously been missed in a collection operation, the following shall occur. Where the Contractor receives notice of a missed sector or sectors and staff and equipment are still available in that workday, the missed area(s) shall be collected prior to the end of the same working day. Where the staff and

equipment are not reasonably capable of being mobilized to address the missed sector(s), the Contractor shall schedule such missed collection as the initial collection of the subsequent day. Where the Contractor does not respond accordingly, the City reserves the right to carry out such collections at the Contractor's cost, and such costs will be deducted from subsequent progress payments. The correction of such missed collections will not relieve the Contractor of the Schedule obligations of E8.

#### E15. SERVICE STANDARDS

- E15.1 One of the goals of the Solid Waste Division is to provide excellent service to its customers.
- E15.2 In order to determine the level of service being provided, the City operates a Call Centre and tracks service deficiencies and other calls from its customers. Every call to the Call Centre generates a service request. Service requests are categorized into five main categories:
  - (a) Service Deficiency
  - (b) Request for Service
  - (c) Same Day Miss
  - (d) Miscellaneous
  - (e) Bulky Service Request
- E15.3 Service deficiencies are typically, but not limited to, instances of:
  - (a) Missed collection
  - (b) Misplaced or damaged collection container
  - (c) Spillage
  - (d) Dangerous driving
  - (e) Profanity
  - (f) Damage to private or public property
  - (g) Excessive noise
- E15.4 A call from a customer regarding missed collection that is received on the same day as the scheduled collection is not a service deficiency.
- E15.5 Discretion will be applied by the Contract Administrator in cases where there are circumstances beyond the control of the Contractor such as high winds. This discretion will only be applied in a limited number of cases.
- E15.6 The Contact Administrator shall provide the Contractor a copy of every service request, except for those classified as Miscellaneous. It is the intent of the City during this Contract to supply and install a computer terminal and associated software in the Contractor's office to directly receive service requests electronically. The Contractor will be required to complete the work order electronically and route to the City in order to complete the service request. The City will provide software application training during this process.
- E15.7 If the service request is a service deficiency, the Contractor shall remedy the service deficiency within 24 hours of receipt, and report back to the City within 48 hours of receipt, the time and date when the remedy occurred. Further to E15.6, the Contractor will be required to report back by noon of the following Working Day when the service requests are transmitted electronically. Failure to do so will result in a service deficiency fee of \$75.00 per occurrence.
- E15.8 In the case of an isolated missed pick-up or pick-ups, as described in E14.3, the Contractor shall be assessed a missed service deficiency fee in the amount of seventy-five dollars (\$75.00)

for each unit as defined in the Form B: Prices which, after investigation, has been determined by the Contract Administrator to have been missed on any collection.

- E15.9 The Contractor shall not be assessed a service fee for a missed collection if the Contractor collects the missed pick-up as outlined in E14.3. The Contractor will not be entitled to compensation for the additional volumes of subsequent pick-ups.
- E15.10 The Contract Administrator shall make known to the Contractor's Supervisor, or to the competent person in the office, notification of this missed pick-up. Notification of the missed pick-up by phone, by facsimile or electronically, or in person by the Contract Administrator, shall be sufficient notice for the application of the service fee for missed pick-ups. The sum, as defined above as a service fee, will be deducted from the Contractor's payment for the month of occurrence. These considerations are not intended to be applied to major service delays associated with the conditions described in E14.1.
- E15.11 If there are more than eight (8) service deficiencies on any day, a service deficiency fee of \$75.00 per service deficiency in excess of eight (8) will be assessed.
- E15.12 At the end of every month, the Contractor Administrator will generate a report for all addresses that have experienced three or more service deficiencies during the previous six months. A service deficiency fee of \$150.00 per address on the report will be assessed for <u>each</u> month the address is on the list.
- E15.13 If there are less than four (4) service deficiencies on any day, an incentive bonus will be paid in the amount of \$150.00 per day.
- E15.14 In order to allow for the Contractor to become familiar with the work, E15.8, E15.11, E15.12 and E15.13 will not apply for the first thirty (30) days of this Contract.
- E15.15 Any and all claims for damage assigned to the Contractor by the City, will be classified a service deficiency and must be handled in the same timeframe as in E15.7. If, after one collection cycle, the deficiency is still unfinished, the City will resolve the claim with material and penalty charges deducted from the monthly progress estimate.

#### E16. IMPASSABLE ALLEYS AND/OR STREETS

- E16.1 The garbage shall be removed under all weather conditions, with the exception of an act of God (such as a flood or an exceptionally heavy snowfall), which temporarily prevents the performance of the Contract. However, even in such cases, areas or parts of areas, which are able to be collected, shall be serviced. Service may be temporarily postponed only with the permission of the Contract Administrator. Should a temporary postponement of service be allowed, service must be resumed at the earliest possible time following the postponement, or as stipulated by the Contract Administrator.
- E16.2 Should weather conditions exist such that the Contract Administrator deems it necessary to omit certain pick-ups altogether, no payments shall be made, even though the garbage is generated and shall be picked up on subsequent collections. Payments for partial monthly pick-ups shall be pro-rated.
- E16.3 In the event that an alley or street is impassable to vehicular traffic due to mud, encroaching trees or construction, the Contractor shall employ reasonable measures to provide collections, and will, accordingly, not be held responsible for any default in missed pick-ups from such alley or street. If the residents, however, in the case of an impassable alley, take their garbage on the appropriate cycle-day to the front street of such alley, the Contractor shall pick it up from the street. The Contract Administrator will endeavour to advise the Contractor ahead of time of construction impediments whenever so advised by others.

- E16.4 The Contractor shall notify the Contract Administrator of any alley or street that the Contractor feels is impassable due to mud, encroaching trees or construction. In the event that the street and/or alley is declared by the Contract Administrator to be impassable, due to mud or construction--except as outlined above in the case of an impassable alley fronted by a passable street, the Contractor and Contract Administrator shall mutually agree to a method of removing the garbage, and the Contractor shall remove the garbage agreed to within the next two working days. Payment for the additional work involved in the pick-up of the garbage removed in this manner shall be made as extra work under this Contract. The extra work entitlement shall be only that work which is required by the Contractor to remove the garbage from the impassable street or lane to a point where it can be picked up by the Contractor at the nearest passable street or lane.
- E16.5 No extra Work is to be carried out until the Contractor and Contract Administrator decide upon the extra work price, in writing in accordance with GC. 4.06 of the General Conditions.

#### E17. RESIDENTIAL GARBAGE COLLECTION – RELATED BY-LAWS/INTERPRETATIONS

- E17.1 Further to Clause GC.7.01 of the General Conditions which identify the Contractor's statutory obligations to comply with all laws which relate to the Work, and to the preservation of public health and safety, three specific By-laws are highlighted herein for purposes of particular focus and interpretation for these Works: these being the Solid Waste By-law 1340/76, the Anti-Litter By-law 1075/75, and the Noise Control By-law 2480/79.
- E17.2 The Solid Waste By-Law 1340/76 and the Anti-Litter By-law 1075/75 as periodically amended by City Council are available at <u>http://www.winnipeg.ca/clerks/pdfs/bylaws/1075.75.pdf</u> and <u>http://www.winnipwg.ca/clerks/pdfs/bylaws/1340.76.pdf</u>. All terms and requirements used in and under this Contract shall be in accordance with the Solid Waste By-Law, except for the interpretation of the By-Law outlined below:
  - (a) That Paragraph 14(C) under "Removal and Disposal of Wastes" which reads "the City will remove all garbage, rubbish and ashes from commercial establishments up to twice per week in quantities not to exceed 1.5 cubic metres (1.5 cu. m) volume per pick-up", shall be interpreted to mean that service to commercial establishments will be limited to 1.5 cubic metres (1.5 cu. m) volume per pick-up provided the garbage is placed in garbage cans or plastic bags. Use of garbage cans or plastic bags requires that they be placed out for pickup on the lot line. Twice per week pickup only applies in the Downtown commercial area.
  - (b) For payment purposes, residential premises shall be defined as is indicated in Clause E4, "Payments".
  - (c) Churches and charitable institutions means all churches, synagogues, and all other places of worship deemed to be such by the Contract Administrator and all charitable institutions deemed to be such by the Contract Administrator but not to include schools, universities, colleges, other places of learning, hospitals, or other similar institutions. Should a church or charitable institution generate on a continuous basis garbage equivalent to that generated by a commercial establishment, the Contract Administrator may at the request of the Contractor, for the purpose of payment under this Contract, designate the church or charitable organization, as a commercial establishment. Otherwise, it will be designated as a residential premise for payment purposes.
  - (d) Apartments are as defined in By-Law 1340/76, except for the purposes of the Contract shall not include apartments utilizing containers designed for mechanical front-loading or side loading collection as described in Section 7(a)(iii) of By-Law 1340/76 as subsequently amended.
  - (e) Notwithstanding statements to the contrary that may be contained in the Solid Waste By-Law and amendments thereto, for the purposes of the Contract, the Contractor shall be required to enter private property and collect garbage from any pick-up location within 1.5 metres of the alley lot line provided the Contractor does not have to open a gate or lift

containers over a fence higher than 0.5 meters. The height of the fence shall be the distance from the ground to the top of the fence.

- (f) The Contractor shall be required to remove garbage contained in approved containers from enclosed garbage stands provided the enclosed stand is equipped with front opening doors, provided that the stand was built prior to February 3, 1977, and provided the stand is located in accordance with (e) above.
- (g) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Solid Waste By-Law and amendments thereto, for the purposes of the Contract, the Contractor shall be required to remove incidental quantities not exceeding 25 kilograms per pick-up (i.e., premises visit), of dirt, sod and construction and demolition waste that is properly packaged as part of the garbage placed for collection.
- E17.3 In the event that property owners commence or discontinue the use of the type of containers specified in this Contract, then the Contractor shall commence or discontinue service, as the case may be, as directed by the Contract Administrator.
- E17.4 The City of Winnipeg Noise Control By-law No. 2480/79, as enforced by the Winnipeg Police Service, has specific applicability to these Works as it relates to citizen rights to an "environment free from excessive sound that may be prejudicial to their health or welfare or safety or degrade the quality of life," and the following excerpts are noted herein:

#### Section II Definitions: 2.2.13

NOISE NUISANCE: Means any loud, unnecessary, or unusual sound, <u>or</u> any sound whatsoever which either annoys, disturbs, injures, endangers, or distracts from the comfort, repose, health, peace, or safety of any person.

#### Section III Prohibited Acts: 3.2.6

LOADING AND UNLOADING: No person shall load, unload, deliver, pack or unpack or otherwise handle any containers, products, materials OR GARBAGE in such a manner as to create a noise nuisance.

E17.5 The Contractor shall note that there are no exemption clauses for garbage collection activities either relative to this activity specifically, or to time-of-day criterion, and that any person, subject to Police Services enforcement, may claim a noise nuisance. Accordingly, it may be necessary to vary the schedule or other aspects of these Works should specific isolated infractions be identified resulting from these Works. The Contractor is also advised that By-law Paragraph 4.1.8 does provide for exemption by permit from the Chief of Police, which might be a Contractor option should the Noise By-law cause uncontrollable impediment to satisfactorily carrying out the full requirements of these Works.

#### E18. DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY UNDER THE SOLID WASTE BYLAW

E18.1 Wherever the Solid Waste By-Law (By-Law 1340/76) and amendments thereto, provides for discretionary authority by the Chief Administrative Officer or designate, or where this discretionary authority is implied in the By-Law, this discretionary authority, as it pertains to matters under this Contract, shall lie with the Contract Administrator.

#### E19. DEALING WITH IMPROPERLY STORED / PLACED / UNSAFE GARBAGE CONTAINERS

E19.1 Should the Contractor find that the garbage is not placed or stored in accordance with the Solid Waste By-Law, By-Law 1340/76 and its applicable amendments, the Contractor shall pick up the garbage and notify the Contract Administrator of the By-Law infraction within 24 hours. Alternatively, if the infraction is such as to make the pick-up unreasonable, the Contractor may leave the pick-up and notify the Contract Administrator as soon as possible within that working

day or commencement of the subsequent working day. Where containers are deemed by the Contractor to be dangerous to handle or structurally unsound so as to impede a reasonable, litter-free or safe collection operation, the container may be left uncollected and shall be tagged in accordance with E20. The Contract Administrator may request the Contractor or supervisor, to meet at a time stipulated by the Contract Administrator, at the location of the pick-up where the By-Law infraction exists to explain the alleged infraction. If there is an infraction of the By-Law, then the Contract Administrator will take immediate steps to have the By-Law provisions enforced and notify the Contractor to resume garbage collection.

#### E20. TAGGING OF UNCOLLECTED MATERIALS

- E20.1 The Contractor shall affix a notice-of-explanation "tag" to all material by-passed during a premises collection operation and left uncollected by reason of storage or placement concerns in accordance with E19 or any other By-law infraction (e.g., an ineligible material). The "tag", to be supplied by the City, shall be completed by the Contractor and then firmly attached to the material/container with duct tape or other suitable mechanism. The "tag" will then describe the reason why the material was left uncollected and will advise the premises of the City's phone number for correction advice.
- E20.2 This "tagging" is intended to reduce repeat By-law infractions at any location and the associated impacts on collection effectiveness and public relations.
- E20.3 Failure to tag the material may result in the pick-up being declared a "service deficiency" under E15.2(a).

#### E21. DAMAGE, MISUSE OR REMOVAL OF GARBAGE CONTAINERS

E21.1 The Contractor shall employ reasonable care not to damage, misuse, or permanently remove any garbage container. As noted in E19, fully deteriorated containers shall not be collected or disposed of with the collection but shall be by-passed and tagged. The Contractor shall replace emptied receptacles in the same location as prior to pick-up. Lids shall be replaced on cans after collection. Failure to respond promptly to violations of this clause may result in correction by the City with costs recoverable as liquidated damages. Should container loss or damage result from unreasonable use of any container, as determined at the sole discretion of the Contract Administrator, the alleged loss or damage claim will be forwarded to the Contractor for resolution.

#### E22. GARBAGE SPILLAGE

- E22.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cleaning up any spillage resulting from an unreasonable use of any garbage container to a satisfactory condition, as determined at the sole discretion of the Contract Administrator.
- E22.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for any spillage resulting from leakage of any fluids discharged from the Contractor's equipment during and after the packing operation.
- E22.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for any spillage resulting from the leakage of fluids due to a malfunction of the Contractor's equipment.
- E22.4 The Contractor shall clean up garbage spillage promptly and completely. Where spillage includes waste oils, paints and other liquids, the Contractor shall use appropriate measures, as approved by the Contract Administrator, to remove all traces of the liquid as practicable.
- E22.5 In the case of a fire occurring in a loaded garbage packer and where the load is dumped at the location of the fire occurrence, the Contractor shall be responsible to clean up the spillage as

soon as the fire is brought under control and, at a minimum, this must be done on the same day.

- E22.6 The cleanup of any spillage will be considered, as incidental to the Contract and no additional payments will be made for any such work.
- E22.7 Failure to satisfactorily clean up spillage, according to the above, may result in the City undertaking or authorizing the cleanup, and all costs incurred will be charged to the Contractor as liquidated damages.

#### E23. DEAD ANIMALS

E23.1 The Contractor will not be required to pick up dead animals from the street system.

#### E24. SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE

- E24.1 The designated garbage disposal site for this Contract shall be the City of Winnipeg Brady Road Sanitary Landfill Site located approximately one mile south of the Perimeter Highway (P.T.H. #100) on Brady Road.
- E24.2 No garbage collected under this Contract shall be deposited in any place in the City or outside other than those places approved by the Contract Administrator.
- E24.3 The hours of operation of this landfill site are currently as follows (but are subject to change):

(a) Weekdays	06:00 to 18:00
(b) Saturdays	08:00 to 16:00
(c) Sundays and Holidays	09:00 to 17:00

- E24.4 Should the solid waste disposal facility be open longer hours, or on certain statutory holidays, the Contractor shall be permitted to take advantage of these hours, subject to the collection hour limitations of E8. During occasional peak garbage generation periods, the City may keep the landfill open after hours at its discretion upon specific daily request by the Contractor to the Landfill Supervisor. The notice to the City's Customer Service Call Centre required by E14.2 shall be carried out whenever extended landfill hours are requested.
- E24.5 The Contractor shall note that the dumping face at the landfill may vary in location within the site throughout the Contract period.
- E24.6 At the City's solid waste disposal facility, the Contractor's collection personnel shall be required to take direction from the Contract Administrator or delegate at the Landfill facility as to the location of disposal to be used in the site. The Contractor's personnel using the disposal facilities in the course of the discharge of their duties under this Contract, shall respect all posted speed operational regulations, safety policies and procedures for contract employees, any oral directions given by that Contract Administrator or designate, weigh in their vehicle and load prior to entering the facilities, and weigh out once every three months as a minimum to confirm the tare weight of their vehicle.

#### E25. DISPOSAL CHARGES

E25.1 The Contractor shall not be charged for disposal of garbage collected under the terms of this Contract at the designated disposal site. Any disposal of garbage collected outside the terms of this Contract as part of the deliveries under Contract is strictly prohibited, and shall be considered a default of the Contract.

- E25.2 Should the Contractor wish to dispose of garbage collected under the Contract mixed with other garbage in a load, the Contractor shall be required to pay for the disposal of the total load.
- E25.3 The Contractor should note that the disposal of garbage not collected under this Contract but disposed of at no charge at any City landfill site is a violation of Clause 18(h) of the Solid Waste By-Law. The Contractor's attention is drawn to the penalties listed in the By-Law for violations under the By-Law 1340/76 and its applicable amendments.

## E26. EQUIPMENT AND PERSONNEL SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

- E26.1 The Contractor is expected to meet or exceed all equipment and Personnel safety requirements required by Federal, Provincial and Municipal law.
- E26.2 The Contractor's name and unit number shall adequately identify the Contractor's equipment so that unit can be readily identified. All unit identification lettering and numbers must be at least 100mm high.

## E27. METRIC MEASUREMENTS

E27.1 The copy of By-Law 1340/76 and amendments thereof, forming part of this specification, is in metric measurements.

## E28. SERVICE LOCATIONS

E28.1 The following is a listing of the service locations for charitable and commercial for this Work.

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
19	Archibald St	Dominion Divers Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
45	Archibald St	Freedom Lift Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
46	Archibald St	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 2
301	Archibald St	Ultra Auto Body	1	C-N/C	Day 5
434	Archibald St	Gateway Const./Oleksiuk Assoc./Hydra House	1	C-N/C	Day 5
517	Archibald St	Carriere Fire & Safety	1	C-N/C	Day 5
532	Archibald St	Sever Signs Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
566	Archibald St	Sikh Temple	1	CCI-N/C	Day 5
575	Archibald St	Le Rendez Vous Family Restaurant	1	C-N/C	Day 5
591	Archibald St	Wine Baril	1	C-N/C	Day 5
599	Archibald St	Kenneth's Hairstyling & Barbering	1	C-N/C	Day 5
649	Archibald St	Golden Star Chinese Catering	1	C-N/C	Day 5
655	Archibald St	European Art Glass Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
665	Archibald St	Plug-N-Play Computers	1	C-N/C	Day 5
675	Archibald St	Iron Fist Tae Kwon Do	1	C-N/C	Day 5
680	Archibald St	Ed Coutu Funeral Home	1	C-N/C	Day 5
699	Archibald St	Consumer Care Maids/St. Boniface St. Vital Maids Mgmt. Co.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
793	Archibald St	Bains Appliance	1	C-N/C	Day 5
153	Aubert St	Total Refrigeration Service	1	C-N/C	Day 5
1040	Beach Ave	Elmwood Community Reformed Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
237	Bertrand St	Marion Grocery	1	C-N/C	Day 5
805	Bickerton St	Perfanick Transport	1	C-N/C	Day 5
109	Bond St	L'Arche Winnipeg Inc.	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
201	Bond St	Lee's Unisex	1	C-N/C	Day 4
208	Bond St	Transcona School of Karate	1	C-N/C	Day 4
308	Bond St	Transcona Taxidermists	1	C-N/C	Day 4
400	Bond St	Ohm's T.V.	1	C-N/C	Day 4
124	Borden Ave	South Transcona Community Club	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
301	Bowman Ave	Kildonan Pet Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 2
497	Bowman Ave	Our Unisex Hair Design	1	C-N/C	Day 2
144	Brazier St	Harry's Cash & Carry	1	C-N/C	Day 2
380	Brazier St	A-Z Sign Services	1	C-N/C	Day 2
71	Burnett Ave	Speed X Courier/Glitter Distributors	2	C-N/C	Day 1
400	Chrislind St	Darion Custom Paint	1	C-N/C	Thur.
127	Cobourg Ave	Gordon King Mem. United Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
705	Concordia Ave	German Church of God	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
57	Dawson Rd N	Falcon Machinery (1965) Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
313	Day St	Nu-Trek Distributors / Bldg A/B	2	C-N/C	Day 4
400	Day St	St. Michael's Parish	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
701	Day St	City of Winnipeg Firehall No. 25	1	C-N/C	Day 4
1800	Day St	Transcona Funeral Chapel	1	C-N/C	Day 4
177	Des Meurons St	Charlie's Place Hairstylist	1	C-N/C	Day 5
289	Des Meurons St	Beaudry's Men's Hairstyling	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Des Meurons St	El Toro Motors	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Des Meurons St	Carl's Barber Shop/Grove Collections & Bailiffs	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Des Meurons St	City of Winnipeg Firehall No. 3	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Des Meurons St	Desjardins Funeral Chapel	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Des Meurons St	Karo Dental Lab	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Des Meurons St	The Bra Bar	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Des Meurons St	Bulldog Appliance Sales & Service	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Des Meurons St	Complexions Total Body Care Cheveux A u Vente 575 1/2	2	C-N/C	Day 5
577	Des Meurons St	Model Sheet Metal/Model Residential Improvements	1	C-N/C	Day 5
440	Desalaberry Ave	Flett Research Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
365	Desautels St	St. Boniface Children's Place	1	C-N/C	Day 5
292	Devon Ave	Woelk Custom Uphostering	1	C-N/C	Day 1

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
580	Dobbie Ave	A/Classic Stone Design B/Classic Stone C/ Magnitape.	3	C-N/C	Day 2
586	Dobbie Ave	Anders Construction	1	C-N/C	Day 2
919	Dugald Rd	Regent Construction Co. Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
1399	Dugald Rd	Beaver Pump Service	1	C-N/C	Day 3
1475	Dugald Rd	Western Industrial Services Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 3
1501	Dugald Rd	Double B Paving	1	C-N/C	Day 3
1505	Dugald Rd	Bockstael Construction	1	C-N/C	Day 3
1585	Dugald Rd	Matrix Industries	1	C-N/C	Day 3
1587	Dugald Rd	Matrix Industries	1	C-N/C	Day 3
1029	Dugas St	Gem Radiator	1	C-N/C	Day 5
365	Edelweiss Cres	Jubilee Mennonite Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 1
300	Edison Ave	The Bake Oven	1	C-N/C	Day 1
123	Enfield Cres	Hossack & Co.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
125	Enfield Cres	Marisa's Hair Bar/Norwood Massage/Vanishing Point	3	C-N/C	Day 5
45	Foster St	St. Gerard's Church Home	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
639	Gateway Rd	?	1	C-N/C	Day 3
871	Gateway Rd	Gateway Gun Club	1	C-N/C	Day 3
937	Gateway Rd	Kingdom Hall Jehovah's Witnesses	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
755	Golspie St	Immanuel United Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
	Goulet St	Speers Petrochemicals Ltd./Petland (head office)	2	C-N/C	Day 5
284	Goulet St	Marion Cleaners	1	C-N/C	Day 5
292	Goulet St	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
411	Goulet St	Klay Korner (ceramics)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
426	Goulet St	St. Boniface Bag Co.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
148	Grandin St	Winnipeg Elevator (1978) Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
520	Grassie Blvd	Unruh Enterprises	1	C-N/C	Day 3
122	Grey St	Style-Rite Hairstylists	1	C-N/C	Day 3
544	Gunn Rd	Autotronics	1	C-N/C	Day 4
	Harbison Ave E	Top Value Meats	1	C-N/C	Day 3
	Harbison Ave W	Harbison Grocery & Video	1	C-N/C	Day 2
220	Helmsdale Ave	St. Stephen's Anglican Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
49	Henderson Hwy	Search All Distributors	1	C-N/C	Day 2
145	Henderson Hwy	Elmwood M.B. Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
163	Henderson Hwy	Three Fathoms Scuba	1	C-N/C	Day 2
167	Henderson Hwy	Manitoba X-Ray Clinic	1	C-N/C	Day 2
	Henderson Hwy	K A T Advertising Specialist	1	C-N/C	Day 2

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
176	Henderson Hwy	Powerland Computers	1	C-N/C	Day 2
177	Henderson Hwy	Hairbenders Unisex	1	C-N/C	Day 2
178	Henderson Hwy	Elmwood Chiropractic Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 2
179	Henderson Hwy	Child Evangelism Fellowship	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
184	Henderson Hwy	Canadian Appliances Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
186	Henderson Hwy	Canadian Appliances (add. space)	1	C-N/C	Day 2
188	Henderson Hwy	Intertribal Christian Communic.	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
196	Henderson Hwy	A & A Jewellers	1	C-N/C	Day 2
214	Henderson Hwy	Elmwood Church of Nazarene	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
217	Henderson Hwy	Innovative Medical Supplies	1	C-N/C	Day 2
224	Henderson Hwy	Blair T.V. Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
228	Henderson Hwy	Kelvin Beauty Salon	1	C-N/C	Day 2
233	Henderson Hwy	Olympia Cycle & Ski	1	C-N/C	Day 2
240	Henderson Hwy	Enterprise Rent-a-car	1	C-N/C	Day 2
249	Henderson Hwy	Trophy House	1	C-N/C	Day 2
249 1/2	Henderson Hwy	Dominic's Custom Tailors	1	C-N/C	Day 2
256	Henderson Hwy	Little Laminator Inc.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
264	Henderson Hwy	Elmwood Medical Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 2
265	Henderson Hwy	Chalmers Bowling Alley	1	C-N/C	Day 2
266	Henderson Hwy	Video World/Tobacco Mill	1	C-N/C	Day 2
271	Henderson Hwy	The Happy Dungeon	1	C-N/C	Day 2
271 1/2	Henderson Hwy	Peter's Barber Shop	1	C-N/C	Day 2
276	Henderson Hwy	Robert P. Kelly Denture Clinic	1	C-N/C	Day 2
333	Henderson Hwy	Western Inventory Service	1	C-N/C	Day 2
335	Henderson Hwy	McBee Systems	1	C-N/C	Day 2
341	Henderson Hwy	Golden Dragon	1	C-N/C	Day 2

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
371	Henderson Hwy	Henderson Cafe	1	C-N/C	Day 2
395	Henderson Hwy	R.K. Wiebe (dentist)	1	C-N/C	Day 2
401	Henderson Hwy	Salvation Army	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
437	Henderson Hwy	House of Vacuums	1	C-N/C	Day 2
445	Henderson Hwy	Kildonan Physic	1	C-N/C	Day 2
451	Henderson Hwy	Coiffures de Paris Unisex/Upper Deck (Sports Cards)	2	C-N/C	Day 2
467	Henderson Hwy	Mills Insurance	1	C-N/C	Day 2
469	Henderson Hwy	Frank E. Simmons Plumbing/Read Carpet Realty	2	C-N/C	Day 2
473	Henderson Hwy	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 2
475	Henderson Hwy	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 2
477	Henderson Hwy	Oriental Experience Restaurant	1	C-N/C	Day 2
	Henderson Hwy	Video Stop	1	C-N/C	Day 2
759	Henderson Hwy	Drs. A. Schmidt & D. Sector	1	C-N/C	Day 2
	Henderson Hwy	Sooter Studios	1	C-N/C	Day 2
825	Henderson Hwy	Henderson Jewellers	1	C-N/C	Day 2
840	Henderson Hwy	Nu Stoney-Mertas Hair Stylist	1	C-N/C	Day 2
	Henderson Hwy	Pruden's Salon	1	C-N/C	Day 2
897	Henderson Hwy	Hamilton Financial Group	1	C-N/C	Day 2
	Henderson Hwy	John Black Mem. United Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
899	Henderson Hwy	Rossmere Chiropractic	1	C-N/C	Day 2
1109	Henderson Hwy	Offices	1	C-N/C	Day 1
1151	Henderson Hwy	Camp Arnes	1	CCI-N/C	Day 1
1159	Henderson Hwy	Rafael's Hair Zoo	1	C-N/C	Day 1
1161	Henderson Hwy	Top Dog Grooming Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 1
1165	Henderson Hwy	Mar Schell's Music	1	C-N/C	Day 1
1200	Henderson Hwy	Crosstown Credit Union	1	C-N/C	Day 2

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
1314	Henderson Hwy	Seventh Day Adventist Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
1577	Henderson Hwy	Petrasko Bros. Garden Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 1
2121	Henderson Hwy	G.M.U. Gospel Mission	1	CCI-N/C	Day 1
2141	Henderson Hwy	A/ Winters Plumbing & Heating B/Trevian Projects C/ Re-Nu T.V.	3	C-N/C	Day 1
73	Hespeler Ave	?	1	C-N/C	Day 2
88	Hespeler Ave	Elmwood Cemetery Co.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
90	Hespeler Ave	Interlake Memorials Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
195	Hespeler Ave	Orsi's Beauty Sales	1	C-N/C	Day 2
205	Hespeler Ave	Heritage Christian Fellowship	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
211	Hespeler Ave	Powerland Computers	1	C-N/C	Day 2
132	Horace St	Alron Sewing Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 5
374	Horace St	Deluxe Auto Body	1	C-N/C	Day 5
298	Jamison Ave	Sub-Zero Ice Cream	1	C-N/C	Day 2
498	Jamison Ave	Jamison Food Mart	1	C-N/C	Day 2
360	Johnson Ave W	Five-L Equipment Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
556	Keenleyside St	Tops Supermatic Dry Cleaners	1	C-N/C	Day 3
200	Kenny St	Paroisse du Precieux-Sang	1	CCI-N/C	Day 5
6	Kern Dr	Christian Reformed Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
751	Kildare Ave E	Alliance Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
205	Kimberly Ave	Masonic Hall	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
211	Kimberly Ave	Grace Lutheran Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
640	Kimberly Ave	Firehall No. 8	1	C-N/C	Day 2
293	Kingsford Ave	John Kampen Wood Creations	1	C-N/C	Day 1
637	La Fleche St	T & T Seeds Garden Centre Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
911	Lagimodiere Blvd	Abear Inc./Burron Lumber	1	C-N/C	Day 5
712	Langevin St	Pal's Supermarket	1	C-N/C	Day 5
494	Larsen Ave	?	1	C-N/C	Day 2
609	Leola St	Assumption Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
711	Leola St	Assumption Parish Hall	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
200	Levis St	P M L Bldg. Maintenance Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
585	London St	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 3
20	Lyndale Dr	Winnipeg Rowing Club	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Madeline St	Tabor Baptist Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
111	Marion St	Dr. Komosky's office	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Marion St	Winnipeg Custom Seating & Health Care Products	1	C-N/C	Day 5
135	Marion St	Elchesher Photography	1	C-N/C	Day 5
137	Marion St	Care's Hair Design	1	C-N/C	Day 5
139	Marion St	Norwood Florist	1	C-N/C	Day 5

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
141	Marion St	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
143	Marion St	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
169	Marion St	WPD &B Advertising/Marchand Unis/Prism Printing Service	3	C-N/C	Day 5
172	Marion St	Pinchin Environmental	1	C-N/C	Day 5
201	Marion St	Legal Locksmith	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Marion St	St. Boniface Norwood Resource Centre/Orlando's Tailoring	2	C-N/C	Day 5
344	Marion St	Norwood Dental Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 5
353	Marion St	Fields T.V. Sales & Service	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Marion St	Major & Minor Musical Supplies/Aim Sound Shop	2	C-N/C	Day 5
361	Marion St	Better Leasing	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Marion St	Crawford Motors/ Keybreeze Boat Tops/ Dynamo Small Engine Svc.	3	C-N/C	Day 5
	Marion St	St. Boniface Appliances	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Marion St	Leonard French & Co. Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
557	Marion St	Hedman Construction	1	C-N/C	Day 5
593	Marion St	Innovative Bldg. Systems	1	C-N/C	Day 5
835	Marion St	Space Max Storage Systems Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
554	Marsden St	Sherwood Park Church of God	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
230	Martin Ave W	Artec Design Kitchens	1	C-N/C	Day 2
708	McCalman Ave	Holy Cross Evang. Lutheran Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
400	McIvor Ave	Polish National Cemetery	1	CCI-N/C	Day 1
305	McKay Ave	Midwest Plastic	1	C-N/C	Day 1
755	McLeod Ave	River East M.B. Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
880	McLeod Ave	McLeod Veterinary Clinic	1	C-N/C	Day 3
1155	McLeod Ave	Kildonan Tool	1	C-N/C	Day 3
118	Melrose Ave W	Command Start/Parkway Woodwkg.	1	C-N/C	Day 4
556	Mission St	Loveday Mushroom Farms Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
989	Mission St	Fostey Stainless Products	1	C-N/C	Day 5
765	Moncton Ave	Kim House of Beauty	1	C-N/C	Day 3
770	Moncton Ave	Zolts Woodworking & Const.	1	C-N/C	Day 3
515	Munroe Ave	Welclad International	1	C-N/C	Day 2
600	Munroe Ave	?	1	C-N/C	Day 3
685	Munroe Ave	The Bake Oven	1	C-N/C	Day 3
690	Munroe Ave	St. Saviour's Anglican Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
1011	Munroe Ave	Braeside E.M. Church	1	CCI-N/C	day 3
325	Nairn Ave	Power Up Computers	1	C-N/C	Day 2
342	Nairn Ave	Shift King Transmiss./Auto & Rad.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
349	Nairn Ave	Classic Auto Body & Paint	1	C-N/C	Day 2
625	Nairn Ave	Gislason Targownik Peters/Lor-Ann	1	C-N/C	Day 3
953	Nairn Ave	A Little Lockshop	1	C-N/C	Day 3
505	Oakview Ave	Oakview Baptist Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
401	Ottawa Ave	Meat Master Grocery	1	C-N/C	Day 2
141	Pandora Ave W	Transcona Television	1	C-N/C	Day 4
321	Pandora Ave W	Kingdom Hall Jehovah's Witnesses	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
359	Pandora Ave W	Master Plumbing & Heating	1	C-N/C	Day 4
501	Pandora Ave W	New Faces	1	C-N/C	Day 4
509	Pandora Ave W	Kensington Homes	1	C-N/C	Day 4
521	Pandora Ave W	Wach Glass Limited	1	C-N/C	Day 4
867	Panet Rd	Kriston Johnson Garden Const.	1	C-N/C	Day 3
154	Pentland St	Church of Latter-Day Saints	1	CCI-N/C	Day 1
174	Pentland St	North Kildonan United Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 1
1300	Plessis Rd	Transcona Credit Union	1	C-N/C	Day 3
1396	Plessis Rd	Abundant Life Baptist Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
567	Plinguet St	Sandor Construction Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	Provencher Blvd	Deschambault Travel Service	1	C-N/C	Day 5
138	Provencher Blvd	H. Deschambault (insurance)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
140	Provencher Blvd	Provencher Billiards	1	C-N/C	Day 5
157	Provencher Blvd	Enterprise Saint Boniface Inc./Chamber of Comm. (Francophone)	2	C-N/C	Day 5
160	Provencher Blvd	Labelle's Wedding Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 5
179	Provencher Blvd	National Bank of Canada	1	C-N/C	Day 5
185	Provencher Blvd	Caisse Populaire/Frank R. Avanthay/Caisse Populaire Ltd.	3	C-N/C	Day 5
186	Provencher Blvd	Petit Point Gallery	1	C-N/C	Day 5
191	Provencher Blvd	Man. Assoc. of School Trustees	1	C-N/C	Day 5
194	Provencher Blvd	Alain J. Hogue & Assoc./Walker & Walker (accts.)	2	C-N/C	Day 5
195	Provencher Blvd	Maurice & Sabourin Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
200	Provencher Blvd	Cinetech Video Rentals/Cafe Internet	2	C-N/C	Day 5
202	Provencher Blvd	(Les) Editions Des Plaines	4	C-N/C	Day 5
205	Provencher Blvd	Century 21 Carrie Realty	1	C-N/C	Day 5
233	Provencher Blvd	Saint Boniface Health & Fam. Svcs.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
279	Provencher Blvd	Cherished Creations	1	C-N/C	Day 5

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
401	Provencher Blvd	Prairie Computers Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
470	Provencher Blvd	Aurele's Hairstyling	1	C-N/C	Day 5
487	Provencher Blvd	Prairie Designs	1	C-N/C	Day 5
556	Provencher Blvd	Leclerc General Repairs	1	C-N/C	Day 5
255	Redonda St	Kinsmen Recreational Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 4
107	Regent Ave E	Edge of Video	1	C-N/C	Day 4
108	Regent Ave E	David George Associates	1	C-N/C	Day 4
112	Regent Ave E	Miller's School of Music	1	C-N/C	Day 4
114	Regent Ave E	Transcona Florists	1	C-N/C	Day 4
118	Regent Ave E	Kinsmen Senior Citizen's Centre	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
120	Regent Ave E	Transcona Music Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 4
121	Regent Ave E	Anthony's Beauty Shop	1	C-N/C	Day 4
123	Regent Ave E	Transcona Quick Freeze	1	C-N/C	Day 4
127	Regent Ave E	Transcona Bakery	1	C-N/C	Day 4
129	Regent Ave E	Bob's Appliance Service	1	C-N/C	Day 4
133	Regent Ave E	Transcona Pentecostal Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
130	Regent Ave E	A/Tony's Pizza B/ Hair Stylists C/Julia's Bridal D/ Unicorn Video	4	C-N/C	Day 4
107	Regent Ave W	H & R Block	1	C-N/C	Day 4
109	Regent Ave W	Action Bicycle	1	C-N/C	Day 4
110	Regent Ave W	Bank of Commerce	1	C-N/C	Day 4
112	Regent Ave W	Sheilagh M. Ball	1	C-N/C	Day 4
114	Regent Ave W	Royal Bank	1	C-N/C	Day 4
117	Regent Ave W	J. De Vos Accountants	1	C-N/C	Day 4
130	Regent Ave W	Saratoga Amusements	1	C-N/C	Day 4
132	Regent Ave W	Kehler Realty	1	C-N/C	Day 4
134	Regent Ave W	Romeo Brothers / Fairvale Vacuum	2	C-N/C	Day 4
136	Regent Ave W	Kosheluk Accounting	1	C-N/C	Day 4
216	Regent Ave W	Transcona Cleaners	1	C-N/C	Day 4
218	Regent Ave W	Quality Printing	1	C-N/C	Day 4
221	Regent Ave W	Sew 'n Seams	1	C-N/C	Day 4
224	Regent Ave W	Dr. B.J. Egan	1	C-N/C	Day 4
225	Regent Ave W	Hair Salon	1	C-N/C	Day 4
	Regent Ave W	Chiropractic Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 4
	Regent Ave W	Transcona Literacy Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 4
	Regent Ave W	Chiropractic Centre	1	C-N/C	Day 4
	Regent Ave W	Denturist	1	C-N/C	Day 4
	Regent Ave W	Regent Photo Studios / # 16	1	C-N/C	Tues.
	Regent Ave W	Abbey Rentals	1	C-N/C	Day 3
	Riverton Ave	Mennonite Brethren Communications	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
	Roch St	North Kildonan Mennonite Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 1

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
425	Rosseau Ave E	Blessed Sacrament Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 4
1665	Rothesay St	Firehall No. 24	1	C-N/C	Day 1
211	Rougeau Ave	Can. Reformed Church of Wpg.	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
162	Rowandale Ave	Rowandale Baptist Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
651	Sandhurst Ave	Grey Street United Church	1	CCI-N/C	
570	Sharron Bay	Springfield Hts. Mennonite Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 1
24	Speers Rd	Rainbow Day Nursery Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
49	Speers Rd	DSI Technical Systems Inc.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
52	Speers Rd	Jade Sign Works	1	C-N/C	Day 5
55	Speers Rd	A / Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
3	St Anne's Rd	Can. Imperial Bank of Commerce	1	C-N/C	Day 5
5	St Anne's Rd	M. Blais & Co./Sport Tec Athletic Therapy	4	C-N/C	Day 5
15	St Anne's Rd	Dominion Carpet Cleaning	1	C-N/C	Day 5
19	St Anne's Rd	Com-Span Inc.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
25	St Anne's Rd	Bettess & Finnan	1	C-N/C	Day 5
27	St Anne's Rd	Studio 27 Hair Design	1	C-N/C	Day 5
35	St Anne's Rd	St. Anne's Custom Tailoring	1	C-N/C	Day 5
39	St Anne's Rd	Easy Care Family Hairstyling	1	C-N/C	Day 5
51	St Anne's Rd	Agri-Feed Products/Last Post Fund	4	C-N/C	Day 5
52	St Anne's Rd	Mike's General Store (antiques)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
60	St Anne's Rd	Hans for Hair	1	C-N/C	Day 5
65	St Anne's Rd	Swat Team Pest Svcs./Viceroy Distributors Wholesale Co.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
71	St Anne's Rd	Imperial Meat Market	1	C-N/C	Day 5
75	St Anne's Rd	Carriage House Lane (craft sales)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
83	St Anne's Rd	Rolly's Transistor Services / Cardinal Electronics	2	C-N/C	Day 5
88	St Anne's Rd	Commercial establishment	4	C-N/C	Day 5
111	St Anne's Rd	Carl's Barber Shop	1	C-N/C	Day 5
117	St Anne's Rd	Commercial / B/A Marketing/Datacard Inc.	3	C-N/C	Day 5
147	St Anne's Rd	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
157	St Anne's Rd	Woodcock Cycle Works	1	C-N/C	Day 5
167	St Anne's Rd	Royal Bank of Canada	1	C-N/C	Day 5
198	St Anne's Rd	Focus Total Vision Care	1	C-N/C	Day 5
20	St Mary's Rd	Market Force Inc.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
106	St Mary's Rd	Green Submarine Day Care	1	C-N/C	Day 5
167	St Mary's Rd	Ultracuts head office	7	C-N/C	Day 5
187	St Mary's Rd	Man. Pharmaceutical Assoc./Man. Society of Pharmacists	1	C-N/C	Day 5
220	St Mary's Rd	Book Ends	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Norgrove Motor Parts & Svcs.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	St. Boniface Fed. Constituency/Spirited	3	C-N/C	Day 5

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
		Music/One on One			
246	St Mary's Rd	Coni-Serve Payfair Grocery	1	C-N/C	Day 5
316	St Mary's Rd	Visual Marketing Systems	1	C-N/C	Day 5
326	St Mary's Rd	Olympia Cycle & Ski	1	C-N/C	Day 5
445	St Mary's Rd	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
454	St Mary's Rd	Boy Scouts Association	1	C-N/C	Day 5
475	St Mary's Rd	Arrow Appliance Service/Kavanagh Electric	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
509	St Mary's Rd	Glenwood Draperies Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
511	St Mary's Rd	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
513	St Mary's Rd	Perth Services Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
541	St Mary's Rd	Renaissance Travels	1	C-N/C	Day 5
547	St Mary's Rd	St. Vital Chiropractic	1	C-N/C	Day 5
559	St Mary's Rd	McElhoes & Duffy (insurance)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
561	St Mary's Rd	Dakota Door & Window	1	C-N/C	Day 5
563	St Mary's Rd	Man. & N.W. Ontario Command	1	C-N/C	Day 5
566	St Mary's Rd	Powerland Computers	5	C-N/C	Day 5
567	St Mary's Rd	Family Book Exchange/ India School of Dance Music & Theatre	1	C-N/C	Day 5
569	St Mary's Rd	Top Hat Florists	3	C-N/C	Day 5
575	St Mary's Rd	Sigmar Group	1	C-N/C	Day 5
589	St Mary's Rd	McElhoes & Duffy Insurance	1	C-N/C	Day 5
592	St Mary's Rd	Miracle Temple	1	CCI-N/C	Day 5
596	St Mary's Rd	Windsor Masonic Temple	1	CCI-N/C	Day 5
615	St Mary's Rd	Randall Homes	1	C-N/C	Day 5
629	St Mary's Rd	Commercial establishment	1	C-N/C	Day 5
637 1/2	St Mary's Rd	My Closet	1	C-N/C	Day 5
639	St Mary's Rd	The Six Thirty Nine Group	1	C-N/C	Day 5
641	St Mary's Rd	Ross & Associates	1	C-N/C	Day 5
677	St Mary's Rd	Head Waves Hair Salon	1	C-N/C	Day 5
681	St Mary's Rd	Keystone Financing	1	C-N/C	Day 5
683	St Mary's Rd	Prints by Screen	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Aida Crystal Engraving	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	R.T. Robert & Co. (acctg.)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Windsor Barber Shop	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	The Sweatshack/David Cavin Sportswear	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Bell Insurance	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Brian E. Baizley (chiropractor)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	One Stop Diving	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Accent on Hair	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Henry's Skate Service	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Gerry Ducharme Realtor	1	C-N/C	Day 5
	St Mary's Rd	Ducharme Agencies Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
767	St Mary's Rd	Boarders Anonymous (retail store)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
769	St Mary's Rd	Fwip the Wecord/Comic Cave	1	C-N/C	Day 5
773	St Mary's Rd	Skala Hair Studio	1	C-N/C	Day 5
775	St Mary's Rd	Pizza Time	1	C-N/C	Day 5
91	Stadacona St	Graphic Solutions	1	C-N/C	Day 2
299	Sydney Ave	Beauty Salon & Barber Shop	1	C-N/C	Day 2
300	Sydney Ave	Encore Hair Design	1	C-N/C	Day 2
188	Tache Ave	Dr. Rosa Rosario	1	C-N/C	Day 5
190	Tache Ave	Dr. Shaun E. Lucash	1	C-N/C	Day 5
192	Tache Ave	Green Mosquito Antiques	1	C-N/C	Day 5
194	Tache Ave	Block Mounts	1	C-N/C	Day 5
196	Tache Ave	Noah's Tropical Fish & Supplies	1	C-N/C	Day 5
258	Tache Ave	Prairie Computer Supplies Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
268	Tache Ave	Kiddin' Around Again/Tache Vacuum	2	C-N/C	Day 5
273	Tache Ave	Steck & Assoc. Realty/Eddy & Assoc.	1	C-N/C	Day 5
276	Tache Ave	Le Croissant (bakers retail)	1	C-N/C	Day 5
278	Tache Ave	Hair Creations	1	C-N/C	Day 5
282	Tache Ave	Mes Dames Plus Fashions	1	C-N/C	Day 5
284	Tache Ave	Philosotea Book & Tea Room	1	C-N/C	Day 5
678	Tache Ave	Mustapha Designs Inc./MDI Agencies	1	C-N/C	Day 5
225	Talbot Ave	Redi Mart Store	1	C-N/C	Day 2
307	Talbot Ave	Provincial Mat Service Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
384	Talbot Ave	Sherwood Assembly of God	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
388	Talbot Ave	Kuts & Kurls	1	C-N/C	Day 2
390	Talbot Ave	Modern Groceries	1	C-N/C	Day 2
398	Talbot Ave	E L M Barbers	1	C-N/C	Day 2
479	Talbot Ave	Iglesia Decristo Missionera	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
508	Talbot Ave	Talbot Heating & Cooling	1	C-N/C	Day 2
520	Talbot Ave	Top Dressing Hairdressers	1	C-N/C	Day 2
573	Talbot Ave	Elite Metal Products	1	C-N/C	Day 3
580	Talbot Ave	St. Sava Serbian Orthodox Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
589	Talbot Ave	Tasse Handy Mart	1	C-N/C	Day 3
592	Talbot Ave	Nairn Beauty Salon/Pet Grooming	1	C-N/C	Day 3
747	Talbot Ave	Picture Perfect Weddings	1	C-N/C	Day 3
811	Talbot Ave	Artistic Beauty Salon	1	C-N/C	Day 3
839	Talbot Ave	Kam's Grocery	1	C-N/C	Day 3
445	Tissot St	Saint Louis Centre	1	CCI-N/C	Day 5
476	Tissot St	Roll-N-Doh Kitchens	1	C-N/C	Day 5
299	Trent Ave	James Food Mart	1	C-N/C	Day 2
7	Tudor Cres	Sherwood Park Lutheran Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 3
414	Tweed Ave	Church of God of Prophecy	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
420	Tweed Ave	Elmwood Church of God	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
647	Union Ave E	J F Bicycles	1	C-N/C	Day 2

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	Units	Customer Type	Garbage Pickup Days
334	Union Ave W	Kildonan Lock Service	1	C-N/C	Day 2
335	Union Ave W	Grand Central Food Market	1	C-N/C	Day 2
411	Union Ave W	?	1	C-N/C	Day 2
109	Victoria Ave W	Angela's Coiffure	1	C-N/C	Day 4
111	Victoria Ave W	Library	1	C-N/C	Day 4
126	Victoria Ave W	Victoria Group / Micheal's Catering	2	C-N/C	Day 4
137	Victoria Ave W	Movies Galore/Quick Fitter Wash	1	C-N/C	Day 4
425	Washington Ave	Washington Christian Centre	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
55	Watt St	City of Winnipeg Firehall No. 2	1	C-N/C	Day 2
229	Watt St	Braeside Electric Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
237	Watt St	Sol Convenience Store	1	C-N/C	Day 2
240	Watt St	Kildonan Custom Upholstery	1	C-N/C	Day 2
254	Watt St	JNG Graphics/Boudewyn Illustr.	1	C-N/C	Day 2
255	Watt St	The Video Cellar	1	C-N/C	Day 2
392	Watt St	Sonney the Tailor	1	C-N/C	Day 2
445	Watt St	Family Thrift Store	1	C-N/C	Day 2
447	Watt St	Community Self-Help	1	C-N/C	Day 2
451	Watt St	Marianne's Hair Fashion	1	C-N/C	Day 2
505	Watt St	Holy Eucharist Ukr. Catholic Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
667	Watt St	Key Insurance	1	C-N/C	Day 2
680	Watt St	No-Wait Beauty Shop/Barber Shop	2	C-N/C	Day 2
700	Watt St	East Kildonan Baptist Church	1	CCI-N/C	Day 2
704	Watt St	Reidke Photography	1	C-N/C	Day 2
710	Watt St	A) Wings Restaurant B) vacant C) Pizza 21st Century D) Scissors & Combs	3	C-N/C	Day 2
722	Watt St	Ebbeling Pharmacy Ltd.	1	C-N/C	Day 2

E28.2 The following is a listing of the service locations for apartments for this Work.

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Units	Garbage Pickup Days
419	Aulneau St	Laurier Apartments	10	Day 5
438	Aulneau St	Apartments	14	Day 5
540	Aulneau St	Paquin Block Apts.	9	Day 5
160	Bertrand St	Dirk Apartments	9	Day 5
344	Bertrand St	Bertrand Apartments	11	Day 5
469	Besant St	Van Ern Apartments	11	Tues./Fri.
25	Cromwell St	Cromwell Apartments	11	Day 5
44	Cromwell St	The Randolph Apartments	9	Day 5
466	De La Morenie St	Apartments	9	Day 5
552	De La Morenie St	De La Morenie Apts.	8	Day 5
231	Dearborn Ave	Voth Apartments	10	Tues./Fri.

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Units	Garbage Pickup Days
371	Des Meurons St	Berry Apartments	8	Day 5
546	Des Meurons St	Deschambault Apartments	8	Day 5
248	Dollard Blvd	Apartments	9	Day 5
209	Dumoulin St	Apartments	11	Day 5
475	Edison Ave	The Edsel Apartments	12	Tues./Fri.
491	Edison Ave	Springfield Apartments	11	Tues./Fri.
131	Enfield Cres	Normandie Apartments	8	Day 5
154	Enfield Cres	Lady Kristina Apartments	11	Day 5
257	Enfield Cres	Lady De Lynn Apartments	10	Day 5
163	Eugenie St	Shady Oak Apartments	11	Day 5
227	Ferndale Ave	Delano Apartments	11	Day 5
231	Ferndale Ave	Dale Apartments	11	Day 5
235	Ferndale Ave	Monica Apartments	11	Day 5
425	Henderson Hwy	Elizabeth Apartments	12	Tues./Fri.
763	Henderson Hwy	Highland Apartments	11	Tues./Fri.
765	Henderson Hwy	Kimberly Apartments	12	Tues./Fri.
767	Henderson Hwy	Dunblane Apartments	12	Tues./Fri.
895	Henderson Hwy	Greenway Apartments	8	Tues./Fri.
1183	Henderson Hwy	Chelsea House	12	Tues./Fri.
70	Hespeler Ave	Silvia Apartments	8	Tues./Fri.
76	Hespeler Ave	Hespeler Apartments	8	Tues./Fri.
174	Highfield St	Highfield Apartments	12	Day 5
56	Horace St	Norbridge Apartments	11	Day 5
137	Horace St	Lomar Apartments	8	Day 5
273	Horace St	Prince Lev Apartments	8	Day 5
210	Jamison Ave	Glasgow Apartments	11	Tues./Fri.
220	Jamison Ave	Edinburgh Apartments	11	Tues./Fri.
240	Jamison Ave	Malcolm Apartments	11	Day 2
409	Kingsford Ave	Lady Erika Apartments	10	Tues./Fri.
407	Lariviere St	Riviera Apartments	8	Day 5
411	Lariviere St	Francis Apartments	8	Day 5
5	MacAulay Pl	MacAulay Place Apartments	13	Tues./Fri.
163	Marion St	Acorn Apartments	8	Day 5
195	Marion St	Albert Apartments	11	Day 5
437	Marion St	Winterdale Apartments	9	Day 5
441	Marion St	Beau-Maur Apartments	8	Day 5
445	Marion St	Eli-Jo Apartments	14	Day 5
453	Marion St	Pauline Apartments	9	Day 5
207	Masson St	Place Masson condos.	9	Day 5
511	Munroe Ave	Mary Liz Apartments	8	Tues./Fri.
900	Norwich Ave	Norwich Apartments	11	Tues./Fri.
287	Provencher Blvd	Lonergan Apartments	11	Day 5
737	St Joseph St	Chateau Nord Apts.	13	Day 5

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Units	Garbage Pickup Days
29	St Mary's Rd	Lady Pamela Apartments	8	Day 5
40	St Mary's Rd	Buena Vista Apartments	16	Day 5
332	St Mary's Rd	Sunset Apartments	8	Day 5
700	St Mary's Rd	Lady Deborah Apts.	9	Day 5
234	Tache Ave	Saint Philips Court	15	Day 5
563	Talbot Ave	Apartments	10	Tues./Fri.
675	Thibault St	Apartments	8	Day 5
237	Thomas Berry St	Apartments	8	Day 5
271	Traverse Ave	Traverse Arms Apartments	16	Day 5
9	Victory PI	Victory Apartments	10	Day 5

E28.3 The following is a listing of the service locations for walk-in service for this Work.

Street Number	Service Street	Service Name	New Bin Type	Garbage Pickup Days
	Braemar Ave	Jean Kenyon	walk-in	Day 5
691	Dunrobin Ave	Anna Wilson	walk-in	Day 2
207	Edward Ave W	Edward S. Palma	walk-in	Day 4
156	Essar Ave	Frank Shalapata	walk-in	Day 2
345	Foxdale Ave	Jimmy Penner	walk-in	Day 1
621	Harbison Ave E	M. Bausman	walk-in	Day 3
38	Kayhans Dr	Jacquie Ozuk	walk-in	Day 1
341	Kingston Cres	Mrs. Edith Peach	walk-in	Day 5
187	Leighton Ave	F. Stromberg	walk-in	Day 2
840	Manhattan Ave	Mr. Norman Sund	walk-in	Day 3
946	McCalman Ave	Betty Newton	walk-in	Day 3
248	Metcalfe Ave	Bobby Beaulieu	walk-in	Day 5
1068	Pandora Ave W	Mrs. Helen Stefanyshyn	walk-in	Day 3
1076	Pandora Ave W	Finna Reed	walk-in	Day 3
92	Riverton Ave	Ann Bakosti	walk-in	Day 2
104	Roberta Ave	G. McDougal	walk-in	Day 2
135	Seine St	Ernest Behr	walk-in	Day 5
624	Simpson Ave	Dora Thomas	walk-in	Day 3
40	St Mary's Rd	Vera Heimbach (Unit 12)	walk-in	Day 5

## E29. TONNES COLLECTED

E29.1 The following graph illustrates the tonnes collected on a daily basis.

300 40.00 Tonnes 35.00 -Kg/stop 250 30.00 200 - 25.00 Kg/Stop Tonnes 150 20.00 100 15.00 50 10.00 0 5.00 26-Feb 04-Mar 11-Mar 18-Mar 01-Jan 08-Jan 05-Feb 25-Mar 01-Apr 08-Apr <sup>15-Apr</sup> <sup>22-Apr</sup> 28-Apr 28-Apr 13-May 13-May 22-May 22-May 22-May 12-Jun <sup>15-Jan</sup> 22-Jan 29-Jan 12-Feb 19-Feb

2004 Northeast Tonnage

